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he RoadShow Group (RoadShow or the Group) recorded a loss

after taxation of approximately HK$46.0 million for the year

ended 31 December 2015 ("FY2015"), compared with a profit

affer taxation of HK$76.7 million for the previous financial year
("FY2014"). An affer tax net gain on disposal of an investment in Mainland
China of HK$32.2 million was recognised for the year ended 31 December
2014. By excluding the impact of this gain, the operating profit after taxation
for 2014 was HK$44.5 million.

This drasfic decline in the Group's operating result is mainly affributable o
the reduction in revenue as a result of continued sluggish demand in the
market, the increase in royalty, licence and management fees, an exchange
loss due to the depreciation of the Renminbi ["RMB”] and impairment losses
on accounts receivable recognised during the year under review. In the
face of this tough market environment, the Group has launched initiatives o
streamline its operafion with an aim fo slash operating cost, thus increasing
cost efficiency.

Given the prevailing uncertain market outlook and facing increasingly keen
competition, the RoadShow Group and its management have realigned their
business strategy. The ultimate aim is fo continue our successful policies of
operating within our core competfencies and ensuring our infernal resources
continue to provide unrivalled value-added services to Hong Kong's advertisers
and agencies. Consolidating BUSTV, IN-BUS, BUSBODY with our recently
created Portal and Apps and augmenting them with our pioneering O20
(Online To Offline) markefing solution, our uniquely integrated advertising
platform remains perfectly positioned to drive growth via the securing of
longterm contracts. Such a highly interactive markefing approach is also
making it much easier for local advertisers and agencies fo hit their marketing
targets. The confent we already broadcast through BUS-TV and via our

Portal and Apps is being further enriched by expansion of our variety of
home-made programming plus the simultaneous incorporation of mustwatch
User-Generated Content [UGC) which has demonstrated proven track records
across other social media. In moving forward, we will also strive to increase
the value of our platforms while delivering on our promise of ensuring that we
will help our clients fo successfully ride out ongoing economic uncertainty. To
this end, we are continuing to hone our competitive edge in the area of out-
of-home (OOH) media advertising via the enhanced co-management of bus
shelter advertising.
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Chairman’s
Statement

EFREHRE
Results for the year

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group reported fofal operating
revenue of HK$429.9 million, representing a decrease of approximately 9.5%
over the previous year. loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
was HK$47.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2015, compared
with profit attributable to equity shareholders of HK$70.6 million in 2014,
which included a gain on disposal of other financial assets of approximately
HK$36.6 million. As explained above, the loss for the year was mainly
atiributable fo the reduction in revenue as a result of continued sluggish
demand in the market, the increase in royalty, licence and management fees,
an exchange loss of approximately HK$9.8 million due to the depreciation

of the RMB and impairment losses on accounts receivable of approximately
HK$13.1 million recognised during the year under review.

Final Dividend

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2015 (2014: a final dividend of HK3.85 cents per
share and a special dividend of HK4.10 cenfs per share|.

Prospects

Hong Kong's ad market and refail sector are continuing to feel the negative
impacts of global economic uncertainty. While we anficipate that adspend
will remain sluggish in 2016, we will do our very best to maintain the
competitiveness of our core operations. Specific steps we are taking fo
achieve this will include the implementation of fighter cost controls aimed
af maximising cost efficiency. Looking ahead to the next financial year and
beyond, we will work tirelessly to maintain our proven policy of ensuring
healthy expansion by meticulously examining opportunities fo diversify

our business portfolio whenever and wherever possible. Along the way,
RoadShow will also continue to do its utmost to achieve greater value and
improve results for both clients and our shareholders.

Community

Llong defermined to be a good corporate citizen and give back fo the
communities that sustain ifs business, RoadShow continues o be a very
enthusiastic supporter of worthy causes. FY2015 saw us once again
honouring this pledge by doing everything possible to help needy members
of society by enthusiastically supporting various deserving NGOs and charity
organisations.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

RoadShow's tireless advocacy of talent and ideas has always been mirrored
by the way it offers its unstinting support to socially worthwhile policies and
practices. As always, our core objective here remains the creation of value for
clients, consumers and staff across our corporate culture as a whole. As we
prepare for the challenges the next few years will bring, we remain committed
to accelerating our efforts to help the less fortunate, protect the environment
and further strengthen Hong Kong's competitiveness.

Appreciation

RoadShow would never have been able to reach the peaks ifs business has
scaled without the whole-hearted support of its staff, clients, suppliers and
shareholders. In closing, | would like to extend to each and every one of you
my sincere thanks for the enormous contributions you have made towards
our sustained success. | and my fellow Board members look forward to your
continued support throughout the next 12 months and beyond.

During the year under review, Mr Alex MO Tik Sang resigned from his

post as Managing Director. | would like to thank Mr MO for his valuable
confribution fo the Group over the years. At this point, the Board would also
like to welcome Mr LEE Luen Fai who became a Non-Executive Director in June
2015, and Mr lawrence CHAN Kwan who has been serving as Acting Chief
Executive Officer since September 2015.

Last but not least, our very special thanks to the Audit Committee, chaired
by Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung and comprising Dr Carlye Wailing TSUI, Professor
Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung, Mr YUNG Wing Chung and Ms Winnie NG,

for their meficulous hard work and uncompromising thoroughness.

| would also like to extend my heartfelt appreciation to my fellow Directors for
their hard work in cementing RoadShow's solid foundations. VWe look forward
fo overcoming whatever challenges may lie ahead in the next financial year
and once again maximising future value for shareholders.

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak

Chairman
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BUS-TV

FY2015 once again saw BUS-TV make great sfrides forward in producing

an incredibly wide variety of self-produced programming ranging from
infotainment, entertainment and environmental news to lifestyle, art and cultural
updates. Such diversity not only appealed to the widest possible range of
local tastes but also helped to successfully grab and hold consumers” attention.
As one of the Territory’s premier specialist media operators, we are confident
that BUS-TV will continue to make it easy for advertisers o reach a huge mass
market for many years.

The next 12-months will see us continue to endeavour to better service brands
and advertisers. In doing so, we also plan fo further infegrate BUS-TV with
other RoadShow online platforms in order to atfract advertising agencies and
brand managers with even more synergy and value.

BUS-BODY

Despite fiercer than ever competition, the year just ended was another
satisfactory one for BUSBODY. This business unit confinues to be highly
effective in atfracting new partners — especially within the hard to reach

and hence highly lucrative blue chip sector. This ultimately meant that we as

a Group were also able to further widen our already sizeable client base.
Advertisers and their agencies’ overwhelmingly positive response fo our unique
infegration of BUSBODY with BUS-TV and IN-BUS via Theme Bus has also
underlined the fact that this channel remains a highly creative and impaciful
tool. As a result, BUSBODY seems poised fo increase its perceived value by
enabling advertisers to broaden their appeal well info 2016 and beyond.

The Single Deck Super Whole Bus is another pioneering RoadShow format
whose arrival has been acclaimed by top advertisers and agencies. Highly
innovative, this channel not only lets brands enjoy a dominant presence at
optimal cost but also guarantees them an outstanding means of creating year-
round fop-of-mind awareness.

RoadShow Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2015
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Operational
Review
E 3 3E1)

FY2015 saw IN-BUS maintain ifs steady forwards momentum. Advertisers
and agencies continue fo be satisfied with this impactful promotional
channel and the way its various formats allow them fo highlight advertising
messages to audiences on a longferm basis. Our IN-BUS teams are now
further adding to IN-BUS's creativity and interactivity via the leveraging of
various state-ofthe-art technologies. As a result, channel formats remain
universally regarded as being outstanding fools for advertisers and
agencies wishing to link their O20 [Online To Offline] campaigns.

Operated in conjunction with JCDecaux Cityscape Limited since 2001, this
arm of our business once again posted encouraging growth during the year
just ended. Such positive developments have not only significantly boosted
our revenue and profifs, but also measurably enhanced our market share
and status as probably Hong Kong's foremost OOH advertising specialist.

é
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BILLBOARDS

RoadShow's sole and exclusive rights for the advertising spaces af the Star
Ferry's outdoor pier and ferry panels and the Hung Hing Road billboard at the
Cross Harbour Tunnel's Causeway Bay side expired in FY2015.

FY2016 will see us continue our efforts to consolidate and sound out different
landlords regarding potential new advertising formats. It practically goes
without saying that we will work fo intensify our Territorywide impact by
further enhancing our ad displays. To this end, we intend to fully capitalise

on new technologies and cuting-edge ad formats as and when they become

available.
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DIGITAL & MOBILE DEVELOPMENT
The roadshow.hk Portal

The roadshow.hk portal is another way we are demonstrating how effectively
we have established ourselves as probably Hong Kong's fop integrated
advertising platform. Showcasing fop notch content, our portal offers an ideal
open platform for User-Generated Content (UGC) and home-made videos.
As such, it is the perfect showcase for advertisers wishing to take consumer
engagement fo the next level by inferacting with local “nefizens”.

In ensuring our operations stay both relevant and profitable, we are also
doing our utmost fo leverage traditional media sfrengths across an increasingly
digital horizon. By better utilising our online and mobile platforms, we are
now providing precisely the seamless multi-dimensional capability needed to
achieve this goal.

Mobile App — HK2gather

Our HK2gather App is yet another way we are speeding and
streamlining the integration of our online and mobile platforms. A
uniquely functional lifestyle App, HK2gather tempts users with a vast
menu of dining suggestions. Its content is already playing a major
role in enabling the Territory's most forward-thinking advertisers to
engage consumers “on the go”.

F-Commerce — Shop2gather

In further enhancing and expanding our merchandising business, we have
now also rolled out a new E-Commerce platform called Shop2gather.com.
Launched in July 2015, the new App has already made encouraging progress
in bringing ourselves and our merchandising customers even closer.

FY2016 will see us redouble efforts aimed af expending our business scope.
In doing so, we will not only devise more creative campaigns but also explore
and enfer info partnerships with ambitious reputable world-wide licensors.
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INTEGRATED MARKETING SERVICES

As many leading local adverfisers' integrated media pariner of choice, we

offer a finely-honed competitive edge that ensures clients can formulate and
tailormake genuinely groundbreaking Infegrated Marketing campaigns.
Gratifyingly, demand for our expertise in this area confinued to remain very
strong throughout the 12 months under review.

Our Integrated Marketing Services team nof only leverages our popular
BUSTV and BUS-BODY platforms, but also capitalises upon our professional
content production and top-quality event management support. Having recently
successfully extended our coverage to include Billboards, roadshow.hk and the
HK2gather mobile App, we can now guarantee clients” access to still more
convenient, comprehensive full spectrum services.

Shortly before going to press, we learned our outstanding Integrated
Marketing expertise had been rewarded with a prestigious Spark Award
Bronze — Best Use of Infegration for 2015. The accolade recognised our
integrated campaigns for their effectiveness in not only reaching but also fully
engaging target consumers.

The list of integrated campaigns that we have initiated these last few years is
a lengthy one. In 2015, we were both proud and privileged to have been
appointed as the Hong Kong Awards for Environmental Excellence’s (HKAEE's)
Management Consultant for a sixth successive year.

Gundam Docks at Hong Kong Il was one of the Terrifory's biggest events of
2015. In fully utilising our platforms on behalf of organisers, we launched four
Theme Buses to boost awareness around town, also using BUS-TV 1o spread
the message to a further 2,600,000 passengers daily. To ensure maximum
impact, we also used IN-BUS 1o evolve formerly purely offline passengers to
our new online Shop2gather.com e-Commerce platform. We also organised
different cross-over advertorials and blog articles. The producing of highly
collectable bus models was yet another way we went the extra mile for the
client behind this campaign!

FY2015 also saw us create a cooking confest af a leading local shopping
mall plus initiate a supermarket roadshow campaign for CP Thailand

Fresh Eggs. Spanning everything from ideas generation fo execution, our
resuliant 360° campaign delivered results that greatly exceeded this client's
expectations.

14 RoadShow Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2015
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COMMUNITY

RoadShow has always done everything possible to be a socially
responsible corporate citizen which delivers on its commitment fo promoting
the development positive communitywide practices. In doing so, we
leverage our uniqueness as a media to promote and encourage our clients
and their sfaff to become responsible corporate citizens themselves. As

of year ended 31 December 2015, we had delivered on this promise

by organising a diverse range of corporate social responsibility (CSR)
inifiatives.

Besides joining forces with the Agency for Volunteer Service fo co-host the
Sixth Hong Kong Volunteer Award, we helped organise various 2015
Caring Hearts Volunteer Activities. The infenfion here was to motivate
Hongkongers to begin participating in voluntary work and so help the
needy. Encompassing fully four waves, the April to September Caring
Hearts campaign was just one of many examples of our good corporate
citizenship in action this last 12 months. Other equally meaningful activities
included a Big Bowl Feast for the Elderly (14 April), a Children’s Fun &
Inclusion Day (30 June), a Bowling Fun Day for Blind People (12 August)
and a Sports Day for the Chronically IIl (20 September).

RoadShow Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2015

HEHLR

BB —BERNIRABEHEEENEELR -
BOHBHERR - Rt REELERND
i HfEEYSBEF AR THEN1TS
B R BE_T-AFT-A=+—HIF
B BB ETA - BRI Z T D
EnesmEs) -

BB [EBTHERRR] A1F  KREMFEN
EEBGLETEIN HAITHEIENRZIR—
T-RFEELERTRLY  SEHSEL
ANPGRS EEBTIE  BEBEFTEAL - EAL
ZRTREDEATPINBET —EAETH
FERIFCEAREED ) - 2HHS
POk - R AZENAERIT - ARtRKRIAR

ENABEERERAXE (WATTA) -
EmESERR ONA=1TH) - RREZLEN

FUN (\A+=H) kEELrEIERA
(RA=+AH) -



Caring for the environment

As a Group, RoodShow has long worked hard to honour its commitment to
building awareness of environmental conservation. Following the success of
our trailblazing three-part “Beyond 16 °C”" and “16 °C Count Down” series of
shows, last year saw us launch a programme called “Critical 18 years”. The
infenfion here was fo alert Hongkongers to the likely impact of global warming-
related phenomena such as heatwaves, global famines, super typhoons and
rain, snow and fog storms between now and 2033.

Last year, we were also honoured to organise our popular ECO Star
Awards for a fourth successive year. The primary objective of these awards
is fo encourage public support for the development of more sustainable
environmental profection. ECO Star Awards 2015 played its part by
recognising and rewarding those making vital contributions in this area.

Other than proactively inifiating the fourth ECO Star Awards, we also
supported various other meaningful local green events during the year just
ended. In addition to the World Wide Fund's Earth Hour 2015 initiative,
examples included Greeners Action’s 2015 Lai See Reuse and Recycling
Program.

On the local and international awards front, the 12 months under review saw
our confinuous commitment fo greener office operations honoured with the
World Green Organisation’s coveted Green Label. Our environmental efforts
were also rewarded with the United Nations Millennium Development Goals’
prestigious Better World Company Label.

Giving back to the local community

Each year, RoadShow provides deserving causes with generous franches
of no-cost airtime fo publicise themselves and their fundraising acfivifies via
BUSTV. In FY2015, some 130 NGOs benefited from this 100% free and
incredibly high-profile exposure.

Over the years, the Group has also infroduced many familyfriendly
employment policies and practices aimed at helping sfaff to better balance
their lives both in and outside work. Our promoting of the importance of
familyfriendly employment policies and practices is ultimately of huge benefit
to not only our workforce but also our day-o-day operational efficiency.

To further raise awareness of the importance of core family values and

foster a more family-focused culture and environment, we are currently also
enthusiastically providing public relations services in aid of the 2015/16
Family-Friendly Employers Award Scheme co-organised by the Family Council
and Home Affairs Bureau.
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Financial Highlights

MBRRE

For The Year Ended 31 December
BE+-_A=+-—HLEE

Full Year Results (HK$’000)

2ERFEGERT ) 2015 2014
Revenue A 411,946 459,462
EBITDA R&tHIE ~ B8 - 9 & KR # sH AT &) & A (25,123) 98,982
Operating (loss)/profit #&8%& (&518) / & F (41,137) 48,087
Net (loss)/profit (E51E/F%8) / 4E7 (46,029) 76,682
Basic (loss)/earnings per share (HK cents) SRXEAN(E518) / ZBF) (L) (4.80) 7.08
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position Data (HK$’000)

REMBHRRRBIEBECEETT)

Cash and cash equivalents & KR ZEY 369,755 438,816
Total assets & E4AE 687,354 790,005
Total liabilities B {E42%8 141,781 113,363
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders A% 3R FE(G = 4858 537,889 666,042
Cash Flow Data (HK$’000)

RERSEHE BT T

Cash generated from operations 3R B 4 & & #H) IR & 9,187 69,914
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (120,110) 104,443
ReRkB2EEMORD)/ BINFHE

Financial Ratios

RS =R

Current rafio JB)LEL = 4.49 6.50
EBITDA margin (5.8%) 20.8%
RETAIE - BIIA - TE REHATH AN X

Net (loss),/profit margin 3% (E518) / P8 (10.7%) 16.1%
Debtto-equity ratio BIfE&E ANk &= 0% 0%
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Financial Review
B 7% Bl B

Results

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group reported tofal
operating revenue of HK$429.9 million, representing a decrease

of approximately 9.5% over the previous year. loss attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company was HK$47.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2015, compared with profit attributable to
equity shareholders of HK$70.6 million in 2014, which included a
gain on disposal of other financial assets of approximately HK$36.6
million. The loss for the year was mainly attributable to the reduction
in revenue as a result of continued sluggish demand in the market,
the increase in royalty, licence and management fees, an exchange
loss of approximately HK$9.8 million due to the depreciation of the
RMB and impairment losses on accounts receivable of approximately
HK$13.1 million recognised during the year under review. The Group
continues fo maintain a strong financial position with bank deposits
and cash of HK$369.8 million as at 31 December 2015 (2014
HK$438.8 million).

Operating Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group reported total
operating revenue of HK$429.9 million, of which HK$411.9 million
was from media sales services and HK$18.0 million was from other
revenue and other net loss. Revenue generated from the media sales
services was HK$411.9 million in 2015 compared with HK$459.5
million in 2014, representing a 10.4% decrease mainly resulting from
the unfavorable demand in the market.

Operating Expenses

The Group's operating expenses increased by HK$44.0 million,
from HK$427.1 million in 2014 to HK$471.1 million in 2015 as
a result of the increase in royalty, licence and management fees
for approximately HK$36.8 million as well as impairment loss on
accounts receivable of approximately HK$13.1 million.

Final Dividend

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: a final dividend of
HK3.85 cents per share and a special dividend of HK4.10 cents per

share).

Cash Flow

In 2015, the cash generated from the operations of the Group

was HK$9.2 million (2014: HK$69.9 million). Payment for copito|
expenditure in 2015 amounted to HK$15.7 million (2014: HK$7.0
million). The consolidated cash flow statement of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2015 is sef out on pages /3 to 74 of this Annual
Report.

BE_Z-AF+t-_A=+t—HLEFE F%
%45 £<<<§£H51)\?E§E/%% 429,900,000 7% *

BEFERINO5% - HE-T—hE+_A
“+-ALEFENARRRREGEELES

# 47 900,000 7T » 1 —Z — 04 e I R A
BFIA A& 70,600,000 - EhEiE—%
HEE S E ENRESHEE 36,600,000
T AFENBENEIEHNATSEEE
RPHEBBMATE  INLEEFE  SHER
EWMEEN - ARERZEESOEREBEBY
9,800,000 ﬁ&#d&@@@*mﬁﬁ%m
JE Wi B R E S 1B 4978 15 13,100,000 JT A
B e z:&%@%&iéa%&%%@miwzﬁm W=
E-AFE+-A=+—HNBETEARES
BB 369,800,000 T ( —F—4E : B
438,800,0007T) ©

EERA

BE-_T-AF+-A=T—HILFE" ﬁ‘i
Bix15 f%“%ﬂﬁl)\ﬁ@%?ﬁ # 429,900,000 7T

B 411,900,000 T Th 2K B £ 52 ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁk
/&% 18,000,000 JTAIZK B E fb Yo A e HAt

BEFE  —E-hFRBHERBAELN

WA BB 411,900,0007T - #ih —Z—m4F
BB 459,500,000 T4 10.4% » hEE
RN TI5HE LT IRAE

ReEE M

AEENKELERR _T-OFNEE

427,100,000 xi*bD/%MAA 000,000 tE2=
T—RFHBE471,100,0007T * TYHREF
. %ﬁ%&a@%i*m%’]ﬁéﬁ@ 36,800,000
TLA R B BRFORE R 1B 498 % 13,100,000
TR

REARR B
E=xfEERBEz_T—RAF+_-_A=+—H
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R 3 85I R FEFRIFE BB REE 4 101L) -
BHERE

RZZE—HF  AEEXRBLEEHNE

& BB 200,000 0(ZZE—F : B
69,900,0007T) s —E—FHENEARF L
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Financial Review
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

At 31 December 2015, the Group's bank deposits and cash amounted
to HK$369.8 million (2014: HK$438.8 million), denominated in

Hong Kong dollars, US dollars and Renminbi. Apart from providing
working capital to support its media sales, the Group maintains a strong
cash position fo meet the potential needs for business expansion and
development.

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group did not have any bank
borrowings. The gearing ratio, representing the ratio of bank borrowings
to the total share capital and reserves of the Group was 0% at 31

December 2015 and 2014.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had stand-by banking facilities
totalling HK$30.0 million (2014: HK$30.0 million).

At 31 December 2015, the Group had net current assets of HK$494 .2
million (2014: HK$623.3 million) and total assets of HK$687.4 million
(2014: HK$790.0 million).

Charge on Assets

At 31 December 2015, bank deposits of HK$79.7 million (2014:
HK$61.4 million) were pledged mainly to secure certain bank
guarantees provided by the subsidiaries of the Company to fellow
subsidiaries regarding their due performance and payment under certain
licence agreements between the subsidiaries of the Company and the
fellow subsidiaries.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and Related
Hedges

The Group's monetary assets and fransactions are principally denominated
in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars and Renminbi. During the year, the
Company incurred an exchange loss of approximately HK$9.8 million
(2014: HK$5.1 million) due to the depreciation in Renminbi against Hong
Kong dollars. During the year, there was no material fluctuation in the
exchange rafes of Hong Kong dollars and US dollars. The Group did not
engage in any derivatives activities and did not commit to any financial
instruments fo hedge its statement of financial position exposure in 2015.
At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the unutilised amount of proceeds from
the Global Offering and the exercise of an overallotment option by the
underwriters on 18 July 2001 were placed into bank deposits.
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Capital Expenditures and Capital Commitments

Capital expenditures incurred by the Group paid during 2015 amounted
to HK$15.7 million (2014: HK$7.0 million). The amount of capital
expenditures incurred is shown in notes 12 and 13 fo the financial
statfements on pages 105 to 106 of this Annual Report.

Capital commitments contracted for but not provided for in the financial
statements of the Group at 31 December 2015 amounted to HK$5.7
million [2014: HK$NIl), which is mainly for the purchase of property,
plant and equipment. The commitments are to be financed by internal
resources of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities at 31
December 2015 and 2014.

Accounting Standards and Policies

The financial statements set out on pages 69 to 133 have been
prepared in accordance with the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Rules Governing the Llisting of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the "listing Rules”), all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards

and Interprefations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Cerfified
Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

At 31 December 2015, the Group had 126 fullime employees. The
Group offers a comprehensive and competitive remuneration and benefits
package to all its employees. In addition, it offers a performance bonus
scheme to its senior staff based on achievement of business objectives
and a sales commission scheme fo its sales team based on achievement
of advertising revenue targets. The Group has adopted a provident

fund scheme for its employees in Hong Kong as required under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and participated in
employee pension schemes organised and governed by the relevant
local governments for its employees in Mainland China.
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Continuing Connected Transactions BEBERS

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group had the following BE_Z-—RF+-_A=+—HIFE £&

continuing connected fransactions, details of which are set out below. BEETUFE@AERS  BEFBHIWT -

i] The Group entered into the fransaction with o connected party in i) ARER-T-IFERMEALET M
2014 os set out below. The transaction constituted a continuing 25 BEETHRAUS 14AT - ZR5H
connected fransaction which is subject to reporting, announcement BRREMERS  AETH® - DHR
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter BYBRIERE - ARP REAFE L
14A of the Listing Rules. The details of the transaction and the REOFHERRARR =T —NETA
proposed annual caps were disclosed in the announcement of the =T BHEHAMEARRN=F N
Company dated 31 October 2014 and the circular of the Company FT=AT=BAHEAOBRARE - %X
dated 12 December 2014. The transaction and the proposed HRERFEELRER-F—NFT=A
annual caps were approved at the special general meeting by =T ARBRENAE LEARAEL
the independent shareholders of the Company (the “Independent AR ([BILRRER ) et -

Shareholders”) on 31 December 2014.

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-F BET-AS—ALFE

i) Name of Nature of transaction HK$'000 Cap amount
connected part B ME Sl T = approved b
ngki%pﬁ ’ RANES SHEF the Irlcu)gepender\);

Shareholders
#AB IR
HENEEER
HK$'000
BET T

1) The Kowloon Motor Bus Licence fee payable by Bus Power Limited 112,922 119,000
Company (1933) Limited (“Bus Power”) (Note 2) to KMB in relation
(“KMB™) (Note 1) fo the grant of an exclusive licence by KMB
hWEBLE(—A== fo Bus Power to market, install, display and
BRAR((AE]) maintain advertisements on or at such parts
(B5E1) of exterior and interior areas and spaces

of the KMB buses on which Bus Power may
display advertisements

Bus Power Limited ([Bus Power]) (Fi5E 2) 5t /L
A Bus Power iR LB BAHESE « 2% - BT R
BESRNEE &N & E A Bus Power A
BTRESHMAE R TR BRFTERRLE
SRS

Notes: Pi&E

1. KMB is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Transport Infernational Holdings Limited (“TIH"). 1. AEBRSERRERERAR(EHE])NEE2EN
B -
2. Bus Power RARRIMMEEEME AR -

2. Bus Power is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
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ii) The Group entered into the transactions with the connected
parties in 2008 as set out below. The fransactions constituted
continuing connected fransactions which are subject to reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders' approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The details
of the transactions and the proposed annual caps were disclosed
in the circular of the Company dated 28 November 2008. The
fransactions and the proposed annual caps were approved at the
special general meeting by the Independent Shareholders on 15
December 2008.

The following transactions have been extended for the period from
1 August 2012 to 30 June 2017. The details of the extended
fransactions and the respective proposed annual caps were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 3 July
2012 and the circular of the Company dated 30 July 2012.
The transactions and the proposed annual caps in respect of
the royalty fees payable, Shortfall receivable, the management
fees payable and the sales rebate payable are subject to

the reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Llisting Rules.
The transactions and the respective proposed annual caps were
approved at the special general meeting by the Independent

Shareholders on 15 August 2012.

ARER-_TTN\FRESEALET TR
X5 BBELTRUFEIAT  ZERS
BRSERERS  AETHRR DRk
BUBRRHMAERE - ZEXHRERFE
FROFBHERARAR_EENF+—
AZTNABTBEOBRARE - 25X H
REFFELRER-_ZZNF+A

THRRBIRERIAS LB BRI -

UTReSmBREE —F——F/\A—H
ERE-Z—tFRA=TH ERRH
REEERFE LROFBCSNARRRN
“E-FAZRTENRME  ARK
RAR-F—"F+H=+HTIEEBL
MIREE - RIBETRAUE 14AE - ZER
HRBHRNEMNE BRI EE - BN
EEERENHEERNNZAFELRA
ETHW - AMRBILRRAERTE o %
EXHRERERFELRER T —=
FNATHEERBRREANAS BB R
RHLAE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE—Z-AF+-A=+—HLFE

ii) Name of Nature of transactions HK$’'000 Cap amount
connected parties TEME il T 5T approved by
BEALER the Independent

Shareholders
KB RR
HENEFE LR
HK$'000
BETT

2) KMB Royalty fee payable by Bus Focus Limited ("Bus 18,121 25,000
he Focus”) (Note 3) to KMB in connection with

the provision of media sales services for panels
installed at transit vehicle shelters owned by
KMB

Bus Focus Limited ( [Bus Focus] ) (F#7E3)
RANEEANTESWIEE =R ERHER
BRRANLESNHNENE

3) JCDecaux Cityscape Limited Management fee payable by Bus Focus to 22,094 29,000
("JCDecaux Cityscape”] (Note 4] JCDecaux Cityscape in connection with the
EeRREARAT provision of media sales services for fransit

(EmREE] ) (M) vehicle shelters owned by KMB
Bus Focusst R NMEHEA M FEEMWIRE F IR
BHERGERESREXNNERE
4) JCDecaux Cityscape Sales rebate payable by Bus Focus to JCDecaux 246 8,000
rER Cityscape in connection with the provision of
media sales services for transit vehicle shelters
owned by KMB
Bus Focusit AN EHER N RERMIREFRMK
BRI IRTS FE (R = BRI S A AV 8 65 140
5) JCDecaux Cityscape Shortfall of guaranteed rental receivable by — 22,000

EEREE Bus Focus in connection with the provision of
media sales services for transit vehicle shelters
owned by KMB
Bus FocusHL N EBH#iA KRB B iR = {2 (L 52
HERBEKNRBHESOTERE
Notes: BT
3. Bus Focus is an indirect 60%-owned subsidiary of the Company and a direct 3. Bus Focus RARRIEEHEROORERMMBEAR - I

#Slmmense Prestige Limited ( [IPL] ) E#EHEHBA0%E
MBS R A o IPLARJCDecaux Cityscape Hong Kong
Limited ( [JCDecaux CHK] ) B)2EHBAR] °

4. EEEEA/CDecaux CHKHIZ BB AF] ©

40%-owned associate of Immense Prestige Limited ("IPL"). IPL is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of JCDecaux Cityscape Hong Kong Limited ("JCDecaux CHK").

4. JCDecaux Cityscape is a wholly-owned subsidiary of JCDecaux CHK.
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iii) The Group entered into the transaction with the connected party in

2007 as set out below. The transaction constituted a continuing
connected transaction which is subject to reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The details of the transaction and the
proposed annual caps were disclosed in the circular of the Company
dated 21 November 2007. The transaction and the proposed
annual caps were approved at the special general meeting by the
Independent Shareholders on 10 December 2007. The detfails of

the annual caps in respect of the licence fee and service charges
payable by RoadShow Media Limited ("RoadShow Media”) under the
following transaction for the three years ended 31 December 2010,
2011 and 2012 were disclosed in the circular of the Company
dated 17 September 2009 and the annual caps were approved at
the special general meeting by the Independent Shareholders on @
October 2009.

The following transaction has been extended for the period from

1 August 2012 to 30 June 2017. The defails of the extended
fransaction and the proposed annual caps were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 16 March 2012 and the
circular of the Company dated 18 April 2012. The transaction and
the proposed annual caps in respect of the licence fee and service
charges payable by RoadShow Media under the following transaction
for the five years ending 31 December 2013, 2014, 2015,

2016 and 2017 are subject to the reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A
of the listing Rules. The transaction and the proposed annual caps
were approved at the special general meeting by the Independent

Shareholders on 14 May 2012.

iii)

REBER-_TTLFHEEEATET N
RS BEBELEMHRAE 4AE  ZRH
BRSERERS BETHRM Ak
BYRRAERTE - ZXHREEFEL
BRAOFBEERARRRZZZLF+—A
ZT—ATIENBEAEE c ZXHRE
BEELRERN-ZZEZELFF+-A+HR
BEFRIASG BB RELE - BHEE
E_F-TF _T——FRET-_F
+=A=+—HFE RoadShow Media
Limited ([ RoadShow Media )5t T3 5
ERMETERREENTEE LRMFE
ERARFTRZZEZNFNA+ LB FIZE
FBHAEE  ZSFELRER=ZT
NEFETANABRBRREN RS BB K
BALAE -

UTRSGMWHBREE=ZE—=F/\A—8
EREZZT—tFNA=1+H - EERSH
RIEAEZFE LROFEERARER
—E-—F=ZA+RBHEBEHRMG UK
ARBRZE—ZFEA+NBFIENE
NI TR o IRIB ETRAIE 14AE - %R
FREBEZE—=F -ZFT—NF - =%
—RF - ZE-RFRZE—tF+=A
=+—H It AEFE RoadShow Media 5t
T FGENNETERREENRESF
ELR - BABETRER A RBILREL
BERTE  ZXHIRBEBFELRER=E
—ZFRATHARKREERAS FES
SRR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE—Z—HF+-_A=1+—HLEFE
iii) Name of Nature of transaction HK$'000 Cap amount
connected party e BT ——r
BEALTER the Independent
Shareholders
BB RR
#HLEMSEE LR
HK$’000
BT T
6) KMB licence fee, service charges and rental 19,594 46,000
nE expenses payable by RoadShow Media (Note
5) to KMB in connection with the granting of an
exclusive licence to conduct BUS-TV Advertising
on KMB's transit vehicles fitted with the MMOB
broadcasting system
RoadShow Media (KiFES) BLERIB R EFFE
TEERDZHEEBRERGHNERESRH L&
TELERESEEERANAEINNETE R
BEREE
Notes: BT

5. RoadShow Media is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Independent Non-Executive Directors have reviewed and confirmed
that the continuing connected transactions as sef out in (i), (i) and [iii
above, which were entered into by the Group, are:

* in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

® on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable than terms
available to or from (as appropriate) independent third parties; and

* in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected fransactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued their unqualified letter containing the auditor’s findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above in accordance with Main Board Listing Rule 14A.56.
A copy of the auditor’s lefter has been provided by the Company to
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Use of Proceeds

Since the listing of RoadShow on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, the Group has utilised approximately HK$469.4 million

for the development of, and the purchase of equipment for use in,
the BUS-TV and other advertising business and for the acquisition

of complementary businesses in Mainland China. The balance of
the proceeds, which has not been utilised, has been deposited with
licensed banks in

Hong Kong.

Corporate Governance

Over the years, the Group has placed strong emphasis on maintaining
high standards of corporate governance and believes good corporate
governance provides a solid and sound framework fo assist the
Directors in fulfilling their duties and responsibilities to the Group. The
Group's standards of corporate governance ensure that the Group's
corporate decision-making process, internal controls, disclosure of
information and communication with shareholders are conducted in
accordance with sound management practices and in full compliance
with the regulatory standards. The Corporate Governance Report for
the year ended 31 December 2015 is sef out on pages 35 to 56 of
this Annual Report.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEAERHN

Directors =%

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak
REEBE LT AFEHL
Chairman £/&

Aged 72. Dr Chan has been a Non-Executive Director and the Chairman of the
Company since 15 January 2001. He is an Independent Non-Executive Director and
Deputy Chairman of Transport International Holdings Limited (“TIH"). He previously
served as Managing Director of TIH and as Managing Director and later Senior
Executive Director of The Kowloon Motor Bus Company [1933) Limited (“KMB”) and
Long Win Bus Company Limited. He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director
of Hang Seng Bank Limited, Guangdong Investment Limited and Swire Properties
Limited. Dr Chan held many positions in the Hong Kong Civil Service from 1964 to
1978 and from 1980 fo 1993, the key ones of which included Private Secretary
to the Governor, Deputy Secretary (General Duties), Director of Information Services,
Deputy Chief Secretary, Secretary for Trade and Industry and Secretary for Education
and Manpower. Dr Chan also served as Executive Director and General Manager
of Sun Hung Kai Finance Company Limited from 1978 to 1980. He was Chairman
of the Hong Kong Jockey Club from 2006 to 2010. Dr Chan is Chairman of the
Court of the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology, a Director of the
Community Chest and a Member of its Executive Committee, Chairman and Non-
Executive Director of Hong Kong News-Expo Limited and a Director (Member of the
Governing Body) of The Hong Kong Club Foundation Limited.

Mr YUNG Wing Chung
g*/@\%i
Deputy Chairman BIZEfE

Aged 69. Mr Yung has been a Director of the Company since 20 November
2008. He is a Corporate Advisor of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited. He also
serves as a Director of YATA Llimited, Hong Kong Business Aviation Centre
Limited, River Trade Terminal Co. lid., Hung Kai Finance Company Llimited
and Airport Freight Forwarding Centre Company Limited. Mr Yung was a Non-
Executive Director of SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Llimited, a Non-
Executive Director of Wing Tai Properties Limited and an Alternate Director to
Mr Raymond Kwok Ping Luen of Transport Infernational Holdings Limited and
an Alternate Director to Mr Raymond Kwok Ping Luen of Wing Tai Properties
Limited. Prior fo his joining Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited in1995, Mr Yung
had many years of working experience with a U.S. Bank in various managerial
positions in Hong Kong and the United Stafes.
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t+Zm o RETA T —F— A+ RABAREEAR
RAIFATESERER - R EHBRERERARA
Al ( (8] ) BUFERTEZREIER - (B EH
BEER WEERENEEREL (—A=Z) BRA
al ([hE]) kEEETAERARESRESHE
TEE - hMAEEFITAERRF - BBREFRA
AIRAEMEGRARBIIEATES - RIGLTH—
NANEE-—NENFR-—NANTFE-NANZF
HEBRESBT - HEAEEEELARE 37
% BFEEER « 2fKA - TEARHE
RANGERZER - RELTR—NLENFE—N
NEFHEBERNEEVBERARNTEERR
KB -MER—_ETRFE_T-TFRHEECEE
ESEXR  RETAEBNMBAZERNZESE
fEBRARRSEERNTEESEE BBHE
HEEER AR ERERIEHNTTES KThe Hong Kong
Club Foundation limitedZE (B AAEHEKE) -

ANTNF - AEEE_ZEENF+—A=-THEA
RRARIES - b ATBEMEZRBR AR AF
R - hMEE—BERAR - BEERAMERL
BMRAF - River Trade Terminal Co. ltd. » JBE
BHERARNESEERLDERARNES - &
EESEHHEABAEEERQANIFERITES
KRMERRARNIFENTES - HABRBRERE
RN R E S I R E R RITES JoKRERR
NRAIEZMEEENRITES - R—ANEEM
AFBEMEZREBRARR  DEEGR—RE
BIRTTEZF BRBRITREBREBEMNZIEZE
ﬁ% °



Ms Winnie NG
HEBZ L

Founder and Deputy Chairman &3 A R8I EE
BA, MBA (Chicago), MPA (Harvard), FCIM, CMILT, MHKloD

Aged 52. Ms Ng is the Founder of the Company and has been Director since its
inception. She is also a Direcfor of Transport International Holdings Limited ['TIH"), The
Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited ('KMB') and Llong Win Bus Company
Limited. Ms Ng has received numerous awards and recognition. In 2010, she was
named a Woman of Excellence and was also selected as one of 60 Meritorious Chinese
Entrepreneurs with Achievement and National Contribution. In previous years, she won the
Yazhou Zhoukan Young Chinese Entrepreneur Award, was named one of China's 100
Outstanding Women Entrepreneurs, was Mason Fellow of Harvard University, and was
the Caring Heart Award recipient. She created the innovative concept of mult-media on
board transit vehicles, unlocking the huge potential of the travelling passengers, which
operations model has been adopted by many companies in Hong Kong, China, and
over the world. At the same time, she successfully positioned KMB as a powerful out-
ofhome media sales tool by raising the profiles and sales of bus body exterior and on
street bus shelter adverfising. Moreover, she spearheaded the spinoff of the company
as the media sales arm of TIH, on the main board of the HK stock exchange (HK stock
code 888), which was a business development breakthrough in the public fransportation
industry. In doing so, she created a significant and substantial value asset for TIH, which
is independently listed and financially sfrong, poised fo create and realise more economic
value and opportunity for the group.

Active in public service, Ms Ng serves on a number of public and community boards.
She is Chairman of Hospital Governing Committee of Prince of Wales Hospital, Convenor
of Course Vetting Committee of Employees Retraining Board, Chairman of Supporting
Services Development Commitiee of Hospital Authority, Advisor of Our Hong Kong
Foundation, Member of Hospital Authority, Court Member of the Polytechnic University,
Director of Vocational Training Council, Member of Employees Refraining Board, Council
Member of Better HK Foundation, Public Relations Committee Member of Community
Chest. She was Member of Hong Kong Tourism Board from March 2010 to February
2016. Ms Ng holds an MBA from University of Chicago and an MPA from Harvard
University. She is a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Marketing.

Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung
SXREFLAFHL
Independent Non-Executive Director B3 IEHITE

Aged 62. Dr Li has been a Director of the Company since 16 September 2004.
He is the Senior Partner of Li, Tang, Chen & Co., Cerfified Public Accountants
[Practising) and an Independent Non-Executive Director of Transport International
Holdings Limited, The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited, Long Win Bus
Company Limited, Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, SmarTone Telecommunications
Holdings Limited, Wong's Infernational Holdings Limited, Hang Seng Bank Limited
and China Resources Beer [Holdings) Company Limited (formerly known as China
Resources Enterprise, Limited). Dr Li was an Independent Non-Executive Director
of Bank of Communications Co., ltd. Dr Li is a Member of the 12th National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a Member
of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong from 1991 to 2004 and Chairman of its
Public Accounts Committee from 1995 to 2004. He is also a past president of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

GBS, OBE, JP, LLD, DSocSc, BA, FCPA (Practising), Hon HKAT, FCA,
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management
EEREREBAEBBN

Directors =5

Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI
BRERBELAFHL

Independent Non-Executive Director B JEHITES

Aged 68. Dr Tsui has been a Director of the Company since 1 April 2001. A
graduate of the University of Hong Kong, Dr Tsui obtained her Doctorate degree
in Professional Studies from Middlesex University, UK. She is the Chief Executive
Officer of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. She is also Fellow of The Hong
Kong Insfitution of Engineers, The Hong Kong Insfitute of Directors, Hong Kong
Management Association and The British Computer Society, Honorary Fellow of the
Hong Kong Association for Computer Education and Chartered Information Technology
Professional. Dr Tsui is holder of Professional Diploma on Corporate Governance
and Directorship. A Justice of the Peace, Dr Tsui is a Member of the Communications
Authority. She was formerly a Wan Chai District Councillor, a Councillor of Urban
Council and Provisional Urban Council and a Member of Broadcasting Authority.
She is Founding Chairman of Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra. She is an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Polytec Asset Holdings Limited (0208). She was selected
as one of the Ten Outstanding Young Persons in Hong Kong 1981 and awarded [T
Achiever of the Year 1992, Member of the Most Excellent Order of the British Empire
in 1997, Bronze Bauhinia Star 2003 and the Ken Goulding Award for the most
outstanding professional doctorate of Middlesex University 2007

Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung
BEPELATHL

Independent Non-Executive Director B JEHITES
SBS, OBE, JP, FHKloD

Aged 69. Dr Yeung has been a Director of the Company since 31 December 2012.
He has been the Managing Director of The Cross Harbour (Holdings) Limited (*Cross
Harbour”) (Stock Code: 0032) since 1 August 2001 and he also holds directorships
in certain other members of the Cross Harbour group. Dr Yeung holds a doctoral
degree in Management. Prior to joining Cross Harbour, he had held various key
management positions in the Government of Hong Kong, where he last served as
the Deputy Director of Immigration; and in the privafe sector, where he last worked
as the Chief Executive of the Shun Hing Group. Dr Yeung is a Member of the CUHK
Advisory Group on Undergraduate Studies in Business, the Hong Kong PolyU CPCE
Advisory Committee and the HKU SPACE Foundation Steering Committee. He is
also an Honorary Institute Fellow of CUHK Business School and a Board member

of the Hong Kong Philharmonic Society.
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Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung
RI-RHER

Independent Non-Executive Director B JE#HITE S
BBS, JP, FHKIoD

Aged 56. Professor Cheung has been a Director of the Company since 19 January
2009. He is the President and Chair Professor of Public Policy at the Hong Kong
Institute of Education. He also holds Advisory and Adjunct Professorships at Fudan
University and Shanghai Jiao Tong University respectively. He obtained a BSc from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong, PhD in Statistics from Universite de Paris VI,
and PhD in Finance from the University of Strathclyde.

He has served as a project coordinator for the Consumer Council in its examination
of the Hong Kong Banking secfor. He was Chairman of Core Group on Corporate
Governance, Pacific Economic Cooperation Council and was responsible for drafting
the PECC's guidelines on good corporate govemnance practice for Asia-Pacific
economies. He has provided consultancy services to the Asian Development Bank,
United Nations ESCAP, Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong, Financial
Services Bureau, Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and SG Securities (HK) Lid.

Professor Cheung is Chairman of the Social Innovation and Entrepreneurship
Development Fund Task Force, the Hong Kong Committee for Pacific Economic
Cooperation (HKCPEC), Nursing and Midwifery Sub-Group of the Steering Committee
on Strategic Review on Healthcare Manpower Planning and Professional Development
and the Supervisory Committee of the Asian Bond Fund (ABF) Hong Kong Bond
Index Fund of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority. He serves on the Commission on
Poverty, Exchange Fund Advisory Committee (EFAC), Products Advisory Committee
of Securities and Futures Commission (SFC) and Steering Committee on Strategic
Review on Healthcare Manpower Planning and Professional Development. He is also
a board member of the Hong Kong Sports Institute. He was awarded the Bronze
Bauhinia Star in 2009, and was appointed as Justice of the Peace in 2007 by the
HKSAR Government.

Professor Cheung was Chairman of Consultation Panel of the West Kowloon Cultural
District Authority from 2009 to 2013 and Advisory Committee on Enhancing Self-
Reliance Through District Partnership Programme (ESR) from 2006 to 2012; and
Member of Minimum Wage Commission from 2011 to 2013, Commission on
Strategic Development from 2007 to 2012, Independent Police Complaints Council
(IPCCJ from 2009 to 2012, Operations Review Committee and Witness Protection
Review Board of Independent Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) from 2008
to 2013. He also served as an Exofficio Member and a Non-official Member of
Social Enterprise Advisory Committee from 2010 to 2012 and from 2012 to 2013
respectively. Professor Cheung was a Parttime Member of Advisory Board of the
Central Policy Unit of the HKSAR Government.
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Mr MAK Chun Keung
BIREBEE
Non-Executive Director JEBTTESE

Aged 75. Mr Mak has been a Director of the Company since 23 May 2001.
He joined The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933] Limited ("KMB") in 1994,
appointed Commercial Director in 2001 and retired in February 2006. He was
Director of KMB's first two joint ventures to operate public bus services in People's
Republic of China. Mr Mak has over twenty years of experience in international
banking and finance, and has held senior executive positions in foreign and local
banking insfitutions throughout his career.

Mr Allen FUNG Yuk Lun

Non-Executive Director JEHITEE
BA, Ph.D.

Aged 47. Mr Fung has been a Director of the Company since 8 July 2014. He has
been an Executive Director of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited (“SHKP”), a Deputy
Chairman of SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Llimited, a Vice Chairman of
SUNeVision Holdings Limited, a Non-Executive Director of Transport International
Holdings Limited and a Director of certain subsidiaries of SHKP. He is also a Director
of The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Llimited and Llong Win Bus Company
Limited. He is a Member of the Executive Committee of SHKP and the Chief
Executive Officer of the SHKP Group's non-property related portfolio investments. Mr
Fung obtained an undergraduate degree (Modem History) from Oxford University
and holds a doctoral degree in Hisfory and East Asian languages from Harvard
University. He was a recipient of a Guggenheim Fellowship in 1996. Mr Fung was
a Teaching Fellow at Harvard University from 1993 to 1994 and a visiting Assistant
Professor of History at Brown University from 1996 to 1997.

Mr Fung joined McKinsey & Company [“McKinsey”], a global management consulting
company, in 1997. During his time in McKinsey, he primarily served clients in China
and Hong Kong, and also served institutions in Europe and Southeast Asia. Mr Fung
was the coleader of the infrastructure practice for McKinsey. He was the Managing
Partner of McKinsey Hong Kong from 2004 to 2010. In 2011, he became a
Director of McKinsey globally, being the first Hong Kong Chinese to become a
Director in McKinsey's history. He was also the head of recruiting for the Asia region
in McKinsey.

Mr Fung is a member of the General Commitiee of the Hong Kong General Chamber
of Commerce. He is the President of the Hong Kong Society for the Protection of
Children, a Council Member of both The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups
and The Hong Kong Management Associafion, as well as a Member of the Executive
Committee of the Hong Kong Council of Social Service. He is also an Advisory
Member of the Faculty of Business and Economics at The University of Hong Kong,

and a Council Member of Sir Edward Youde Memorial Fund.
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Mr John Anthony MILLER
HERAE

Non-Executive Director FFEITE =
SBS, OBE, MPA (Harvard), BA (London), FHKIoD

Aged 65. Mr Miller has been a Director of the Company since 20 March 2008.
He retired from the Civil Service in February 2007 as Permanent Representative
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of China fo the World Trade
Organization in Geneva. Key positions held over a career spanning 35 years
prior to Mr Miller's retirement include Permanent Secretary for Financial Services
and the Treasury 2002-2004, Director of Housing and Chief Executive of the
Housing Authority 1996-2002, Director-General of Trade 1993-1996, Director of
Marine 1991-1993, Information Coordinator in the Chief Secretary’s Office 1989-
1991 and Private Secrefary to the Governor 1979-1982. Mr Miller is a Non-
Executive Director of Transport International Holdings Limited, The Kowloon Motor
Bus Company (1933) Limited and SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited,
and is Chairman of Hong Kong Business Aviation Centre Limited, a partly-owned
subsidiary of Sun Hung Kai Properties Llimited. Mr Miller was a Non-Executive
Director of SUNeVision Holdings Limited for the period from 1 December 2011 to
31 December 2013. Mr Miller holds an MPA degree from Harvard University and
a BA degree from London University.

Mr LEE Luen Fai

Non-Executive Director FEHITE= =
BA

Aged 62. Mr Lee has been a Direcfor of the Company since 18 June 2015. He is
the Director of Public Affairs of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited ("SHKP"). He joined
SHKP in May 2005. He is a veferan of the broadcasting industry, with more than
20 years of experience in the field. He joined Radio Television Hong Kong (RTHK)
in the 70's and has hosted a number of popular programmes including “Talkabout”
and “City Forum”. Mr lee has also been the Head of Public Affairs for Radio
Television Hong Kong's [RTHK) radio division. In 1993, he was promoted as the
Head of Public and Current Affairs of the television division overseeing all public
and current affairs programmes. He became Controller of Educational Television
in 1996 and was responsible for all educational TV and school programmes. Mr
Lee holds a bachelor of arfs degree in Chinese History from University of East Asia
[now known as University of Macau).

Mr Lee has an extensive record of public and community service and is currently a
Member of the Standing Commission on Civil Service Salaries and Conditions of
Service, Hong Kong Advisory Council on AIDS, Labour Advisory Board Committee
on Occupational Safety and Health and Election Committee (Transport Sub-sector.
He is also a Non-official Member of Family Council and an Associate Member
of Central Policy Unit of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region.
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Board of Directors EB =

Position held in the Group Date of appointment
RSB ENRA ZEAH

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak :

N Chairman 15 January 2001
BRADEB L AL —mE e
GBS, JP e —ET—%—-AtHH
Ms Winnie NG Deputy Chairman 15 January 2001
th#agt BIEE —ZT—F$—H+HH
Mr YUNG Wing Chung Deputy Chairman 20 November 2008
BKBEE e —TENFE+—HA=1H
E)r_CoArlye \/\/o\i:Ling JeL Independent Non-Executive Director 1 April 2001
PRSI LA BIIFHTEE —FT-—FmA-H
BBS, MBE, JP
Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung : .

s - Independent Non-Executive Director 16 September 2004
S AL BT E S —ZEMENA AR

: P
g%?%20%§i$zgiEUNG Ve luirg Independent Non-Executive Director 19 January 2009
8BS, Jp AR BULIFRITES —“ZEENF-A+NA
TDE'r%g:;]T;,EiU[;I(%Z;lChUHQ Independent Non-Executive Director 31 December 2012
aone st BUFRNITES —T——%+t-A=1+-A

’ JP
Mr MAK Chun Keung Non-Executive Director 23 May 2001
BIRBEE FHITES —ZZ-FAR-t+=H
/l/lrgjiggr;ﬁ/;mhony MILER Non-Executive Director 20 March 2008
g ST S —2E \F=A=tA
Mr Allen FUNG Yuk Lun Non-Executive Director 8 July 2014
BEBSTE FATES —E-mOFEELANA
Mr LEE Luen Fai Non-Executive Director 18 June 2015
FEER A FEMITES —E-RFRATNR

Senior Management SREEAS

Position held in the Group Year joined the Group

RASE BB MAREE 2z F 15

Acting Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer

Mr Lawrence CHAN Kwan September 2014

5is o . . -z

Flseea ERTHERRT BN AEFILR
Mr Thomas LO Sui Sing Chief Operating Officer September 2008
EIRER S EIEEH —EEN\FNA
Mr Simon SIU Kar Chun Chief Sales Officer October 2010
BERIREE HER —ZET-FTF+A
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERARE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the "Group”)
have placed strong emphasis on maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and believe that good corporate governance
provides a solid and sound framework fo assist the Board of Directors
(the "Board”) in fulfilling its duties and responsibilities to the Group
and its shareholders. The Board also believes that good corporate
governance practices are imporfant fo protect the inferests of our
shareholders and to disseminate the investors’ confidence.

In March 2005, the Board adopted the “RoadShow Code on
Corporate Governance” (the "RoadShow Code”) and the Company has
implemented the RoadShow Code since then. The RoadShow Code
was updated from time fo time in accordance with the amendments to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code

The Company has complied with all the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2015

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Overall Accountability

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are individually and
collectively accountable to the shareholders for the success and
sustainable development of the Company. The Board provides direction
and approval in relation to matters concerning the Company’s business
strategies, policies and plans whilst the day-to-day business operations
are delegated to the Managing Director and the senior management.
The Board is accountable to the shareholders and in discharging its
corporate accountability, every Director is required to pursue excellence
in the inferests of the shareholders and fulfill his or her fiduciary duties
by applying the required level of skills, care and diligence to a standard
in accordance with the statutory requirements.

Board Composition

The Booard is composed of eleven Directors as at 31 December 2015
four of whom are Independent Non-Executive Directors ("INEDs"). As af
31 December 2015, INEDs constitute more than one-third of the Board.
These INEDs bring a wide range of business and financial experience
to the Board, which confributes to the effective direction of the Group.
One of these INEDs possesses appropriafe professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise. The Company
has received from each INED a written confirmation of his or her
independence pursuant to the independence guidelines set ouf in Rule
3.13 of the listing Rules and considers that all INEDs are independent.
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TEERRE
Board Structure EESRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
g

INED NEDS MD
AL unss t / Shares + | Yasems
|
REMUNERATION

COMMITTEE
FHEES

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
TREEE

AUDIT COMMITTEE
EREEE

NOMINATION
COMMITTEE
REZEEE

RISK COMMITTEE
ERESE

3 NEDs
ZIFRTES

MD NEDs NED
] REREKE FIFMTES ] FIFHITES
On 7 September 2015, Mr Alex MO Tik Sang has tendered his
resignation and stepped down as an Executive Director, Managing
Director and a member of the Executive Committee of the Company
with immediate effect. In the interim, Mr Lawrence CHAN Kwan, Chief
Financial Officer, has been appointed with effect from 7 September
2015 as Acting Chief Executive Officer to manage the Company until
the appointment of a new Managing Director.

In addition, Mr LEE luen Fai has been appointed as a Non-Executive
Director with effect from 18 June 2015.

Details of all Directors, including the Chairman, Non-Executive Directors
("NEDs") and INEDs are set out on pages 28 to 33 of this Annual
Report. The relationships (including financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships] among members of the Board are also
disclosed.

Board Diversity Policy

The Group adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) in August 2013. The Company recognised and embraced the
benefits of having a diverse Board to the quality of its performance.
The Board Diversity Policy aimed to set out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. In designing the Board's composition, Board
diversity has been considered based on a range of perspectives
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of services. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.
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The Nomination Committee will review and monitor the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to
ensure its effectiveness.

Board Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is responsible for promoting the success of the Group by
directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and effective
manner. Each Director has a duty fo act in good faith and in the best
interests of the Company. The types of decisions that are taken by the
Board include those relating to:

e the strategic plans and objectives of the Company;

* the monitoring and controlling of the Group's operating and financial
performance;

* overseeing the management of relationships with stakeholders,
including shareholders, customers, Government, suppliers, employees
and the community; and

e the assessment and management of risk to which the Group is
exposed.

Day-fo-day management of the business of the Company is delegated
to the Managing Director or the officer in charge who is required fo
report back to the Board.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
legal action against the Directors and officers.

Details of the responsibilities, membership, attendance and activities
of each Board Committee during the year are set out on pages 41 to
48 of this Annual Report.

Board Meetings and Attendance

The Board met regularly throughout the year to discuss the overall
strategy as well as the operational and financial performance of the
Group. All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major
changes that may affect the Group's businesses, including relevant rules
and regulations. Written procedures are also in place for Directors to
seek independent professional advice in performing their Directors’ duties
at the Company's expense. No request was made by any Director for
such independent professional advice in 2015. During the year, the
Chairman of the Company has held a meeting with the NEDs (including
the INEDs) without the presence of the Executive Director.
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Seven Board meetings were held during 2015. The aftendance records
of each Director at Board meetfings in 2015 are set out below:

RIB-RIFBETTLRESFEEE - RES
R-ZF-AFRTNESTE RN LT CEH

I

\a
—

Attendance of individual Directors at Board meetings in 2015

BESR-_Z-AFETNESSTRNHESR

Meetings Attended/Held
e/ BiTEE
Independent Non-Executive Directors

BYFHUTES

Dr Carlye Wai-ling TSUI

SR+ 717

Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung

FHRE[L 7/7

Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan leung

SR REUR 7/7

Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung

HEPEL 7/7

Non-Executive Directors

FHTES

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak (Chairman)

WIREM L () 707

Ms Winnie NG (Deputy Chairman)

hEgLt (FIE/E) 7/7

Mr YUNG Wing Chung (Deputy Chairman)

SREEE (HEE) 717

Mr MAK Chun Keung

BIRoR I 6/7

Mr John Anthony MILLER

HEE 707

Mr Allen FUNG Yuk Lun

EER 707

Mr LEE Luen Fai (appointed as a Director with effect from 18 June 2015)

SEEEE (H-F-—AFAA+\ALEEEHEF) -

Executive Director

HITES

Mr Alex MO Tik Sang (resigned as a Director with effect from 7 September 2015)

EA sk (BT AN AL OEREEE) &
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Appointment of Directors

The Company follows formal procedures for the appointment of

new Directors. Appointments are first considered by the Nomination
Committee. The nomination is then submitted to the Board for decision
with reference to criteria that include professional knowledge and
industrial experience, personal ethics, integrity and personal skills, and
the time commitments of the candidates. Any Director so appointed by
the Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting after his or her appointment and shall then be eligible for re-
election at that meeting.

All NEDs are appointed for a term of not more than three years. All
Directors are subject to refirement by rotation and re-election af the
Company’s annual general meeting at least once every three years.

Chairman and Managing Director

In order to reinforce independence, accountability and responsibility,
the role of the Chairman is separate from those of the Managing
Director. The Chairman of the Company is Dr John CHAN Cho

Chak and the Managing Director was Mr Alex MO Tik Sang (up to

6 September 2015). The Chairman is responsible for ensuring that

the Board is functioning properly with good corporate governance
practices and procedures, whilst the Managing Director is responsible
for managing the Group's businesses in a manner consistent with the
Group's standards and in accordance with specific plans, instructions or
directions of the Board.

Directors’ Induction and Training

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction
and information fo ensure that he or she has a proper understanding
of the Company's operations and businesses as well as his or her
responsibilities under the relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations.

Directors’ fraining is an ongoing process. During the year, Directors are
provided with monthly updates on the Company’s performance, position
and prospects o enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties. In addition, all Directors are encouraged fo
parficipate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company updates Directors on
the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to fime, to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.
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EEERRE
According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary of REEERENTH  EFNEBE_T—0F
frainings received by the Directors for the year ended 31 December TZA=+—BIFEEEXNEIHENT

2015 is as follows:

Type of Trainings

bl i

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHTES

Dr Carlye Wai-ling TSUI

RRREL :
Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung
FREBL ’
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan leung
RI-RHE ’

Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung
RS

Non-Executive Directors

FEHITES

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak (Chairman)
PRIBZE LT (F5E)

Ms Winnie NG (Deputy Chairman)
hBEGRLT (8FF)

Mr YUNG Wing Chung (Deputy Chairman)
BoKBFEE (BIER)

Mr MAK Chun Keung
EiREEE :

Mr John Anthony MILLER
WELEAE '
Mr Allen FUNG Yuk Lun
Mr LEE Luen Fai (appointed as a Director with effect from 18 June 2015)
TEEEE (B —AFNAT/\HBEZLREE)

Executive Director

HITES

Mr Alex MO Tik Sang (resigned as a Director with effect from 7 September 2015)
FMESRE (B FT—AFNALHEGTESE)

Notes: Mk :

A. Reading materials and updates on various topics, including corporate governance A HEEETAZE (REEHCEXELRFERESR
matters and directors’ duties and responsibilities FHEEMF) M REFRER

B. Attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums and/or briefings B. HEHER /Se%Kk /RHER KENe
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Company Secretary

The Company Secretary supports the Chairman, the Board and

the Board Committees by ensuring good information flow and that
Board policy and procedures are followed. She advises the Board

on governance matters and facilitates the induction and professional
development of Directors. The Company Secretary is an employee of
the Company and is appointed by the Board. Although the Company
Secretary reports to the Chairman and Managing Director, all Directors
may call upon her for advice and assistance at any time in respect
of their duties and the effective operation of the Board and Board
Committees. The Company Secretary also plays an essential role in
the relationship between the Company and its shareholders, including
assisting the Board in discharging its obligations to shareholders
pursuant fo the Listing Rules.

The Company Secretary has complied with the training requirements of
the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2015.

BOARD COMMITTEES

In order to oversee various aspects of the Company's affairs, the Board
has established various Board Committees. The majority of the members
of the Board Committees are either INEDs or NEDs.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established on 12 September 2001.
The Committee shall comprise three NEDs and an Executive Director.
Upon the resignation of Mr Alex MO Tik Sang as a member of

the Executive Committee with effect from 7 September 2015, the
Committee comprises three NEDs. As atf the date of this Annual Report,
the members of the Executive Committee are Mr John Anthony MILLER
(chairman), Dr John CHAN Cho Chak and Mr Allen FUNG Yuk Lun.

The Executive Committee meets regularly throughout the year and on
an ad hoc basis if necessary to review business operations, financial
operations and ad hoc projects of the Group. These projects include
major acquisitions, investments and their funding requirements.
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EERRE

During 2015, the Executive Committee held twelve meetings. The RIB-HF  THEEGHETT RS
aftendance records of the members of the Executive Committee in 2015 FoTRZBENERN T —RAFMNHFELE
are summarised below: BT

Attendance of individual members at Executive Committee meetings in 2015

ERER-Z-AFETHTHRZEETEZNHERR

Meetings Atfended/Held
P/ BT8R

Non-Executive Directors

FEHTES

Mr John Anthony MILLER (chairman)
WERLLE (FE)

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak (deputy chairman)
PBRIBZE T (/=)

Mr Allen FUNG Yuk Lun

B E B 10/12
Executive Director

HITES

Mr Alex MO Tik Sang (resigned as an Executive Committee member with effect from 7 September 2015) 7/7
w4kt (BT —AFNA+HAEFETREZESEEMKE)

Audit Committee EREEE

The Audit Committee was established on 11 April 2001. The Committee HBZZEGR_ZT—FHWA+—HBKYL - &
currently comprises three INEDs and two NEDs. The Managing Director BERB =SB RITEE WA IENT
is required to attend each Audit Committee meeting as requested by the EEAN - EFHKCIEERZESHRENESL
members of the Committee. After each meeting, the Audit Committee HESNEREES S BERZEENENX
reports to the Board on significant issues. As at the date of this Annual CRBROANESSERSEAEE - RAFHA
Report, the members of the Audit Committee are Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung B ERZEERERETREEL(ER)
(chairman), Dr Carlye Wai-ling TSUI, Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan BRERELT RCRHER - MBABZLTRAX
Lleung, Ms Winnie NG and Mr YUNG Wing Chung. B o

The Audit Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities %V?i RHHERGETHABEE RER
relating to accounting and reporting practices, to improve the credibility ~ ®RMEME - BMERR A B LA RE A

and objectivity of the Company’s financial and other reports, and to 1%&&%%%& 7 bA)%ij{l}%%W%B%%?%'JE&E?
strengthen the system of internal control and compliance with applicable i@ﬁﬁ;ﬂﬁﬂ&%ﬁ% ° EEQ$E§B£XIEA$?§J%
laws and regulations. The full terms of reference are available on the 3 (www. roadshow.com.hk) R B 22 Fri s &

Company’s website (www.roadshow.com.hk] and the Stock Exchange's B

website. R-B—R%E BREEEERTT-AEH -

During 2015, the Audit Committee held three meetings. The Audit %T?a;é!gﬂﬁ(\a;%i%&ﬁb{—rﬁﬁ&$ﬂ

Committee reviewed the following documents and matters at the
meetings:
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e the Company's Report of the Directors, Independent Auditor’s
Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December
2014 and 2014 Annual Report, with a recommendation to the
Board for approval;

e the Company’s Interim Financial Report for the six months ended
30 June 2015 and Interim Report 2015, with a recommendation
to the Board for approval;

e the Company's accounting policies and its compliance with the
prevailing accounting standards of Hong Kong;

* the audit plan of the External Auditors for the year ended 31
December 2015, including the extent of coordination between the
Audit Committee and the auditors;

e the results of the external audits;

* the fees payable to the External Auditors of the interim review
for the six months ended 30 June 2015 and of the audit for the
year ended 31 December 2015, and terms of engagement of the
External Auditors for approval by the Board;

e the results of the 2014 and 2015 internal audits performed by an
outsourced independent professional firm (the “Internal Auditors”);

* the proposed internal audit plan for the financial year 2015 of the
Internal Auditors including the extent of coordination between the
Audit Committee and the Internal Auditors;

 the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Group;
and

e the compliance by the Company with all applicable laws,
regulations, standards and best practice guidelines.

The Audit Committee Chairman and other Committee members also met
in separate private session with the External Auditors at least once during
the year.
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The Audit Committee held three meetings in 2015. The aftendance BRZEGN T -RAFBRTTZRGH -
records of the members of the Audit Committee in 2015 are summarised #ZZEEXNEN T —RFMHF LS a0
below: T

Attendance of individual members at Audit Committee meetings in 2015

BERER-F-AFETHNELKZESERNLERR

Meetings A’r’rended/Held
FrifE / BITER

Independent Non-Executive Directors

MFHITES

Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung (chairman)

FREML (27) e
Dr Carlye Wai-ling TSUI 3/3
REREL
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan leung 3/3
RICREK
Non-Executive Directors
FHITES
Ms Winnie NG
thRaex+ 3/3
Mr YUNG Wing Chung 3/3
BAKBEE

Remuneration Committee yMEEs

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 23 March ARAR-_ZZMNF=A-+=ZAKIHFMZ

2004. The Committee currently comprises two INEDs and o NED. As
at the date of this Annual Report, the members of the Remuneration
Committee are Dr Carlye Wai-ling TSUI (chairman], Mr YUNG Wing
Chung and Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung.

The Remuneration Committee is intended to define and articulate

a compensation philosophy or strategy consistent with the strategic
objectives of the Company. To achieve this objective, the Remuneration
Committee formulates policies on and reviews the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model that it will

review the proposals made by the management on the remuneration
packages of the Executive Director and senior management, and make
recommendations fo the Board. The Board will have final authority to
approve the recommendations made by the Remuneration Committee.

The full terms of reference are available on the Company’s website
(www.roadshow.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange's website.
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The principal elements of the Company’s remuneration policy for
Directors and senior management are:

® no individual should determine his or her own remuneration
package;

* remuneration packages should be on a par with companies with
whom the Company competes for human resources;

e the Company should aim at designing remuneration packages that
affract and refain executives needed to run the Group successfully
and motivate executives to pursue appropriate growth strategies
whilst it should avoid paying an excessive amount for such
purposes;

* remuneration packages should reflect the performance and
responsibility of an individual, as well as the complexity of work;
and

* remuneration packages should be structured in such a way that
they provide incentives to Directors and senior management to
improve their individual performance.

In 2015, the Remuneration Committee:

* reviewed the remuneration packages of senior management;

* reviewed the target bonus proposal of the Managing Director and
made recommendation to the Board; and

e reviewed the Directors’ fees proposal and made recommendation
to the Board.
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The Remuneration Committee held one meeting in 2015. The attendance
records of the members of the Remuneration Committee in 2015 are
summarised below:

FHEEER T —AFRITT —RgRE &
MEEeRER T —AFMEELatm
™~

Attendance of individual members at Remuneration Committee meeting in 2015

ERER-_Z-AFETHHFHZEESTEBINHERR

Meetings Atfended/Held
P/ BT8R

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BYFHTES

Dr Carlye Wai-ling TSUI (chairman)
REREL (FE)

1/1

Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan leung
RICRHE

1/1

Non-Executive Director

FHTES

Mr YUNG Wing Chung
BAKBEE

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 8 March
2006. The Committee currently comprises two INEDs and a NED.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the members of the Nomination
Committee are Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan leung [chairman), Dr
Carlye Wai-ling TSUI and Mr YUNG Wing Chung.

The principal functions of the Nomination Committee include:

* reviewing the structure, size and composition [(including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and
making recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes;

e identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members, and selecting or making recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

* assessing the independence of INEDs; and

* making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the
Managing Director.

The full terms of reference are available on the Company’s website
(www.roadshow.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange's website.
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In 2015, the Nomination Committee: RZZE—hF  REEEEE
o MIAEFEREM - RENKE  UKE

* reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and the

Board diversity; FEEKEZ T
* reviewed and assessed the independence of INEDs; o ima MAMABIIERITEEMN BN
* made recommendations to the Board about the retirement and o HEEAANTEEREBAEAE® &%
re-appointment of Directors by rotation at the forthcoming annual ERARETEAEERESeR LR
general meeting of the Company; and EXD

e assessed an individual suitably qualified to become a Board

e HMERALREGABAREEBRKRE

mem.be;,dor;d rzlc.noleT rec}immendoﬂon to the Board on individual EGHE  BHIELLAALNEESE
nominated for directorship. BRI -

The Nomination Committee held two meetfings in 2015. The attendance
records of the members of the Nomination Committee in 2015 are
summarised below:

REZBEN-_ZT—AFHRITTMAGEHE - 18
HEBERER T -RFHHERE M
I

Attendance of individual members at Nomination Committee meetings in 2015

ERER-_E-HAFETHREZETEZENHERBR

Meetings Aﬁended/Held
i3 / ;51{1'5 =3

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BEHITES
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan leung (chairman) 2/2
KRR (£E)
Dr Carlye Wai-ling TSUI 2/2
BrRBBEL
Non-Executive Director
FHTES
Mr YUNG Wing Chung 2/2
NokE L E
Risk Committee RAREZEES
The Company established the Risk Committee on 27 November 2015. ARBRZE—RAF+—AZ+EAKIAR
The Committee currently comprises an INED and two NEDs. As at the ZEBg -ZECRAM—RBUFNTEER
date of this Annual Report, the members of the Risk Committee are MBIERNITESHEN - RAFHBEE - BARE
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan leung (chairman], Mr John Anthony SEeREBRERCEHME (XF) HEgLts
MILLER and Mr Allen FUNG Yuk Lun. KBS EBEAE -
The principal functions of the Risk Committee include: RREZEENTIZME R

o HMAKENEBRAZENER BRI
AREBRERABERE(BRARTEHR
EHREERZ S W!ZD/\H Wig k&
FH)RAEFSRHEE

o ERREREEBIER UBFIRERKRE

® advising the Board on the Group's risk appetite statement(s), risk
principles and other risk-related issues including corporate actions
and proposed strategic transactions such as mergers, acquisitions
and disposals;

e overseeing the risk management framework to identify and deal with

financial, operational, legal, regulatory, technology, business and %E¥TWE4? 2E AR CEE B
strategic risks faced by the Group and amend and supplement this fily ~ S5 R BB - 3 N AR

EFT R AHTE

from time to time;
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* approving the Group's risk policies and risk tolerances;

e considering emerging risks relating to the Group's business and
strategies to ensure that appropriate arrangements are in place to
control and mitigate the risks effectively;

* reviewing risk reports and breaches of risk tolerances and policies;
and

* reviewing and assessing the effectiveness of the Group's risk control/
mifigation tools including the enterprise risk management programme,
the risk management systems, the internal audit function relating to
risk management and the Group’s contingency plans.

The full terms of reference are available on the Company's website
(www .roadshow.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange's website.

In 2015, the Risk Committee reviewed and approved the proposal
for risk management services to the Company to be provided by a
professional firm.

The Risk Committee held one meeting in 2015. The attendance records
of the members of the Risk Committee in 2015 are summarised below:

o EMAKEMEBBELRERER
o EREAKEEBLEMAEBAOMNLIR

MmN - TRRREEERAUERE
EREABR

o EMRARKEULEGRRBREZEFK
KRERBL K&

o RAKMEAEERBESE/FRTA
MR BREXERERE - AR
EERG - BREREEEBNABERZ

WEERAEEN RS

B E 2 A RAR R A
(www.roadshow.com.hk) K B 32 Fr 48 uh &5 B -

RZE—HF ERZECCEHRIE—H
3%%% A RAARIREEREEREH SR
ERZEEN= ﬂiﬁﬁT REE A
BEEeKER - T—HENHFEEM M
T

Attendance of individual members at Risk Committee meeting in 2015

ERER-F-HFETHNEARZESTRNLERR

Meetings Attended/Held
FriifE / BT8R

Independent Non-Executive Director

MFHITES

Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Lleung (chairman)
SRICRBIX (FE)

1/1

Non-Executive Directors

FHTES

Mr John Anthony MILLER
mEgLE

Mr Allen FUNG Yuk Lun

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the Group's financial
statements for each financial year or period that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash

flows for that year or period. In preparing the financial statements for the

year ended 31 December 2015, the Directors have:
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e selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently;

* made judgments and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable; and

e prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the Group's
financial statements. This responsibihf\/ extends to annual and interim
reports, “price-sensitive” or “inside information” announcements and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, as well as
reports fo regulators and information required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements. The responsibﬂif\/ of the External Auditors for the
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2015 is sef out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages
67 to 68 of this Annual Report.

Auditors’ Remuneration

In line with the sound practice that the independence of External
Auditors should not be impaired by other non-audit assignments, the
Group ensures that assignments other than statutory audits underfaken
by External Auditors should not have an adverse impact on their
independence. The External Auditors are also required to review
their relationship with the Group and furnish confirmation to the Audit
Committee confirming their independent status.

During 2015, the External Auditors (including any entity under common
control, ownership or management with the External Auditors or any
entity that a reasonable and informed third party having knowledge of
all relevant information would reasonably conclude as part of the audit
firm nationally or internationally) provided the following audit and non-
audit services to the Group. Details are set out below:

A BN S BRI A B BUE

L]
H e

o (EHBENEEHHE RMEF R
s NUREREEERFHMBERE -

EERARERAUAEEUBRENAE - &
THERRFRITHERE - LTRAREE
HE [ RESRE K AEEE | D R EAME T
RE - MEEEREXNEE  URRBRBEE
REATHRENER - MNERBMBZE AR
ARE-Z-RF+_A=t—RLFEHH
BENEFTRNAFRE S/ EEFE 8 ARE
RS o

122 B 5 BN

BT EINEZBEN BN TR B A IEE T
TIRHISSHRIFER - AEBERERINEZ 2D
EITEEBRMIM TR TG HE BT IEE
REETE - SMNEREE AR R EFEAE
EREE  UMEZZESHLEREAER
WERNFLNE

RZT—HF - SMNEREE (B E RN
BENX A — Bt ARERE  REEM
BHREERNE =TT A R E R
MEBMO2ELERD BMOBE) RAEEIR
AT FZ RIFBZIRES - FEHIIWT

2014
HK$
BT
Audit

Bz 2,330,000 2,219,000

Non-audit services (Note)
BRI (Hit) 570,000 663,000

Note: B3t -

Non-audit services for both years mainly consisted of the reviews of the Group's interim
financial reports and the performance of certain agreed-upon procedures.

MERNFEECRGEIZCREHAEET BRI BRER
WITETHEERF

2015€%  BaEERERAT 49



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

An independence confirmation has been obtained from the External
Auditors confirming that for the year ended 31 December 2015 and
thereafter to the date of this Annual Report, the External Auditors are
independent of the Group in accordance with the independence
requirements of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of internal
controls and reviewing its effectiveness through the Audit Committee. The
Board and the Audit Committee have decided to outsource the review
of the infernal controls function to the Internal Auditors and the Board
has delegated to the management the implementation of such system of
internal controls as well as the review of relevant financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management procedures.

Control Environment

The review of the internal control functions by the Internal Auditors
was based on the "COSQO” framework (the internal control framework
developed by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission).

The expectations of the Company regarding duty and integrity are
clearly stated in the Company's Code of Conduct and Staff Handbook,
as well as the policies and procedures manuals, which sef out the

rules and policies, for the Directors and employees to follow. These
cover all aspects of administrative and operational activities, including
relationships with customers, suppliers, competitors and fellow staffs. The
internal confrol system covers every activity and transaction of the Group
in RoadShow. The system is based on clear stewardship responsibilities,
authorities and accountability. Our employees are an important part of
our internal system and the Group expects them to contribute to that
system. In addition fo setting our guidelines, principles and values, the
Group recognises that an environment where employees feel free to
bring problems to management is also necessary to make our internal
control system successful.

Control Processes

Since 2004, the management and employees, assisted by the
Internal Auditors with particular professional experience in assessing
risks and control procedures, have evaluated the Company’s control
environment, conducted risk assessments of businesses and processes,
and documented those processes that are critical to the Group's
performance.

Qualified personnel throughout the Group maintain and monitor the
system of controls on an ongoing basis and the Managing Director
and Chief Financial Officer have to report any significant changes,
deficiencies and material weaknesses in, and fraud related to, internal
controls to the Audit Committee and the Internal Auditors.
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Control Effectiveness

In accordance with the internal audit plan designed by the Internal
Auditors and agreed by the Audit Committee, the Internal Auditors
update and review the Company's infernal control system every year

in such a way that the update and review of all the major components
of the internal control system are completed within a period of three
years. The Internal Auditors provide recommendations to management to
improve internal controls after each review for management and Audit
Comnmittee's consideration.

During 2015, the Internal Auditors reviewed the processes and
procedures for compliance with relevant policies and procedures of the
Company. The scope covered the following processes:

o Entity level
o Corporate governance

® Bus Shelter Advertising
o Operation and contract compliance

® Human Resources
* |Integrated Advertising Packages

* Information Technology
o Access confrol over systems and dofo/CompuTer operations
o Change management
o Access confrol over systems and data
o Change management/Access confrol over systems and data/
Computer operations
o Computer operations

e Follow-up of prior year's internal audit findings
e Control Self Assessment

Based on the findings and comments from the Internal Auditors and Audit
Committee, the Board considered the internal control system effective
and adequate for the year ended 31 December 2015.

No significant areas of concern that might affect the Company's
shareholders were identified.
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Business Ethics

Code of Conduct

The Group’s Code of Conduct for Directors and Employees [the "Code
of Conduct”) has long been established to ensure that both Directors
and employees are kept abreast of and fulfill a set of defined ethical
obligations and appropriate behaviours when conducting businesses
and/or performing their duties. The Code of Conduct also provides
guidance on responsibility to the Group's shareholders, customers and
the community. Any member in breach of the Code of Conduct is
subject to disciplinary action. The Code of Conduct is updated from
fime fo time, taking into account changes in the relevant legislation and
the business environment.

A set of Code of Conduct can be accessed through the Company's
intranet and the Company’s website.

Price-sensitive and/or inside information

With respect to procedures and infernal controls for handling and
dissemination of price-sensitive and/or inside information, the Company

e is aware of its obligations under the Listing Rules and Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance that information that is expected fo
be price sensitive or inside information should be disclosed as soon
as reasonably practicable;

e conducts its affairs with close regard to the “Guidelines on Disclosure
of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and Futures Commission

in 2012;

® has included in its Code of Conduct a strict prohibition on the
unauthorised use of confidential or inside information: and

* has established and implemented procedures for responding to
external enquiries about the Group's affairs. Senior staff of the Group
are identified and authorised to act as the Company's spokespersons
and respond to enquiries in allocated areas of issues.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted its own Code for Securities Transactions

by Directors [the “Securities Code”) on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of the Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.
Following specific enquiry by the Company, all Directors have confirmed
that they fully complied with the Securities Code throughout the year
2015.

Details of Directors’ interests in the shares of the Company are set out in
the Directors’ Report on pages 58 to 66 of this Annual Report.

59 RoudShow Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2015

HEE
wren

AEERCRUEERERRTER([RTE
Al URREERESNREEBL LB
TRER  BELETHERENEEATR
RBTR - BITEATREHAEERR - &
FRhitReEEES] o )z RETEK
BARXERRE. - BTENEREAMIDE
REBRENEH M A ER o

ABA LB D T A BHE R A A TR
CHEETR

BRESRBENR, RAEHEL

ERBRERBRERBENRINEHEEH
BFRABERETE - ARF]

o HMEHRLEWRAR(GESFEAEKDDE
XIVARE IO EME - BAEREMYIEAIITA
HENRRBEERFT RRESBNEN L
WEHE

s EREEBHBTESFMEEBERE
BegRr _—T——FHMAN(ARHEEHE
30D

o FEEIRTEAPHABREREEERMK
FEMNKABEBHRE &

o BIUREMEEINALHAEEEHERLY
BE o LHETRERAEESABERET
ARTHBEA - ORISR NS
#o

EFETESRS

ARAREEMEBBKEFTETESFRXHNOT
AN([EFHTAI]) - &R ERRNMER LR
RIS T B LB TTAESRETESF I HH
RETRDFAETNRE - KARAHELFEEN
& 2REFHEIRCR-_FT-LFAN—HE
mETESTA

EERARFRMNBEFBRNAFHRE 58
BEEBOOENEEEHREN -



COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers effective communication with shareholders is
essential fo enable them to have a clear assessment of the Group's
performance as well as accountability of the Board. Major means of

communication with shareholders of the Company are as follows:

Information Disclosure on Corporate Website

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information about the
Group to all interested parties on a timely basis. The Company maintains
a corporate website (www.roadshow.com.hk] where important corporate
information and other relevant financial and non-financial information
such as annual reports and interim reports to shareholders, notfices and
announcements, circulars and other information are available for review
by shareholders and other stakeholders.

General Meetings with Shareholders

The Company’s annual general meetings and special general meetings
provide a useful platform for direct communication between the Board
and shareholders. Separate resolutions are proposed on each substantially
separate issue af the general meetings.

In accordance with the Listing Rules, the Company would arrange for the
notice to shareholders fo be sent in the case of annual general meetings
at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and to be sent at
least 10 clear business days before in the case of all other meetings.
Under the Bye-laws of the Company, all shareholders have 21 clear days’
notice of the Annual General Meeting ("AGM") and Special General
Meeting ("SGM”| for the passing of a special resolution, and 14 clear
days’ nofice of all other general meetings at which the Directors and
Committee chairmen or members are available to answer their questions.
A representative (usually the engagement partner) of the External Auditors
also attends the AGM and will take questions from shareholders relating
their audit of the Company’s financial statements.
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The 2015 AGM was held on 15 May 2015. The attendance records of :%—ﬂ%ﬁ&%}@ik@ﬂﬁé:%—ﬁiﬂﬂ
the Directors at the 2015 AGM are set out below: TRART - BRHE-F-AFRFEFKA

SHNEREINMT -

Attendance of individual Directors at the 2015 AGM
ZREESHE-_Z-—HFERRBERZNER

AGM Attended/Held

FriifE/ BITRRBERS
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHITES
Dr Carlye Wai-ling TSUI "2
RERIEL
Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung 11
FREBL
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan leung 1
RICRHIR
Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung 1/
HETIE L
Non-Executive Directors
FHTES
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak (Chairman) 1/
PRADEEL (%)
Ms Winnie NG (Deputy Chairman) 11
hEEZLE (FEE)
Mr YUNG Wing Chung (Deputy Chairman) 1/
BXRBEE ()
Mr MAK Chun Keung 1/
ERE KL
Mr John Anthony MILLER 1/
HBREE
Mr Allen FUNG Yuk Lun 1/
Mr LEE Luen Fai (appointed as a Director with effect from 18 June 2015) N/A
FRERE (BT -—AFA AT/ \BEREZERESE) NiE A
Executive Director
HITES
Mr Alex MO Tik Sang (resigned as a Director with effect from 7 September 2015) 1 /1

EoExRE (B ZE-AFNALHEHIEE)
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Voting by Poll

Resolutions put to vote at the general meetings of the Company (other
than on procedural and administrative matters) are taken by poll. The
results of any voting by poll are announced and published as soon as
possible, but in any event no later than 30 minutes before the earlier of
the commencement of the moming trading session or any pre-opening
session on the business day following the meeting, on the Stock
Exchange's and the Company's websites.

Shareholders’ Rights

Set out below is a summary of cerfain rights of the shareholders of

the Company as required fo be disclosed pursuant to the mandatory
disclosure requirement under Paragraph O of the Corporate Governance
Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules:

Convening of special general meeting on requisition by
shareholders

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, shareholders holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition nof less than one-enth of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Secretary of the Company for a SGM 1o be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. The request must be in written form with the purpose of the
meeting stated therein, duly signed by the shareholders concerned and
deposited at our Hong Kong principal office for the attention of the
Company Secrefary. Upon receipt of the confirmation by the Company’s
Share Registrars that the request is valid, the Company Secretary will
arrange to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance
with the Company's Bye-laws and the statutory requirements to all the
registered shareholders.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings by shareholders

Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights
of those shareholders having the right to vote at the general meetings
may submit a written request fo move a resolution at general meetings.
The procedures for putting forward proposals at general meetings
[including nominating a person for election as a Director) are set out in
the Company’s Shareholders” Communication Policy, which is available
on the website of the Company (www.roadshow.com.hk|.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Enquires may be put fo the Board by contacting either the Company
Secretary through (852) 2746 5200 or e-mail at cosec@roadshow.com.hk
or directly by questions at an AGM or SGM. Questions on the procedure
for convening or putting forward proposals at an AGM or SGM may also
be put to the Company Secrefary af the same means.

Constitutional Documents

There were no changes made to the constitutional documents of

the Company in 2015. An updated version of the Memorandum

of Association and Bye-laws of the Company is available on the
Company's website (www.roadshow.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange's
website.
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Directors’ Report
ESERE

The directors of RoadShow Holdings Limited (the "Company”)
(the “Directors”) submit herewith their annual report together with
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2015.

Principal place of business

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and has its
registered office at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda and principal place of business at 9 Po
Lun Street, lai Chi Kok, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The principal
place of business will be changed to Flat D, 2/F, HK Spinners
Industrial Building, Phase 5, 760-762 Cheung Sha Wan Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong with effect from 29 March 2016.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
"Group”) are principally engaged in the provision of media sales
and design services and production of advertisements for Multi-
media On-board (“MMOB" or “BUS-TV"), transit vehicle exteriors
("BUS-BODY") and interiors (“IN-BUS"),

apps, shelters and outdoor signages advertising businesses. The

online porto\, mobile

Group is also engaged in the provision of integrated marketing

services covering these adverfising platforms.

The principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set ouf in note 15 to the financial stafements.
The analysis of the principal activities and geographical
locations of the operations of the Group during the financial

year are sef out in nofe 2 to the financial statements.

Recommended dividend

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
(2014: a final dividend of HK3.85 cents per share and a
special dividend of HK4.10 cents per share) in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2015.

58  RoadShow Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2015

RoadShow Holdings Llimited (B FRIZER AR D
AR RANER(EFDENRREEFER
ERkBE-Z-—HAF+-A=THLEFEMNL
BRMBRE -

TRERME

RAARIRBEREFMAY  HFM#HEELR
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda * 2 & BB R BB NLE
HRABRENT FEBEEZHMEEERRDE
NERDEE760-762RBBH B IERNES H
DE H_E—AFZA-F+NLBBEK-

ARRMEIBXEBRIREER - MARE REH
BRel(GRIAKE D IEREARDZRE
(IBZHERIXELER])  TEEWEHI
HIELTEHF D RERABTELEM]) - B
i FRERRER  RESRFIIESERMAK
BHERRARE - URESRENES - K&
BMRERE L RS T A MNERE TG HEER -

ARAMBRARNTIERE REMERTIHNEHT
BHRERMES - AEBEXAPBFENEBEH
RgEm i TSN B wmRME2 -

ZERE

EXTEERBE_T—RAFT-_A=1T—HI
FERERMRE(ZT—NF : FREHK3.85
IR s il B &I E®E 4.101L) -

* EHREE



Business review

A review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015, a discussion on the Group's future business
development and the description of the risks and uncertainties
that the Group may be facing are set out in the Chairman's
Statement on pages 4 to 7 and Operational Review on pages
8 to 17 of this Annual Report. This discussion forms part of this

Directors’ Report.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the

Group are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators is set out in Financial
19 to

Highlights on page 18 and Financial Review on pages

27 of this Annual Report.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group respects the environment and is committed to building
awareness of environmental conservation and minimising ifs
carbon footprints through efficient use of resources, employing
green office initiatives and promoting environmental awareness

among employees.

In 2015, the Group organised the “ECO Star Awards 2015
for the fourth successive year. The primary objective of these
awards is fo encourage public support for the development
In addition, the

18 years” with an

of more sustainable environmental protection.
Group launched a programme called “Critical
aim fo alert Hongkongers to the likely impact of global warming-
related phenomena between now and 2033. The Group also
supporfed various meaningful local green events in town such
s "Earth Hour 2015" of World Wide Fund and “Lai See Reuse
and Recycling Program 2015" of Greeners Action.

In relation to the efficient use of resources, the Group has
infroduced various measures including, improving the office
environment to help conserve energy, using energy saving
lighting to reduce electricity consumption and the need for air-
conditioning, encouraging double-sided printing, less colour
printing and paperless practices to reduce carbon footprints.
The concept of “Reduce”, “Reuse” and “Recycle” are heavily
promotfed. Employees are also encouraged to treasure food and

minimise waste and noise.
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Directors’ Report
EZEHE

During the year under review saw the Group's continuous
commitment fo greener office operations honoured with the
World Green Organisation’s coveted Green Label. The Group's
environmental efforts were also rewarded with the United
Nations Millennium Development Goals’ prestigious Better World

Company Label.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

On the Group's business and operation levels, before using
any information, programme, music video or photo which is
not owned or taken by the Group, the Group shall identify
the copyright owner, ascertain the ownership of the relevant
copyright work and obtain consent from the copyright owner.
In addition, if any advertisement placed by the adverfiser
which may have legal issue or issue about compliance with the
applicable laws, rules or regulations, such advertisement shall
be pre-vetted by the Group in accordance with the advertising
guidelines of the Group before acceptance of publication. As
to the personal data of the online members of Shop2gather.com
(the "Members”), the Group keeps reminding the employees of
and emphasising the importance of safeguarding the security
of the personal data. When collecting and processing such
data, the Group complies with the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance and the guidelines issued by the Office of the Privacy
Commissioner for Personal Dafa, with a view fo protecting the

privacy of the Members.

In relation to human resources, the Group is committed fo
complying with the requirements of the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance, and ordinances relating to disability, sex, family
status and race discrimination, as well as the Employment
Ordinance, the Minimum Wage Ordinance and ordinances
relating to occupational safety of employees of the Group, so as

to safeguard the inferests and well-being of its employees.

On the corporate level, the Group complies with the requirements
under the Companies Ordinance, the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong limited (the
"listing Rules”) and the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
"SFQ") for, among other things, the disclosure of information
and corporate governance, and the Group has adopted its
own Code for Securities Transactions by Directors on terms no
less exacting than the required standard of the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in

Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.
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Relationship with employees, customers and
suppliers

The Group believes that employees are the valuable assets
of the Group. With a view fo refaining tfalents, the Group
offers a comprehensive and competitive remuneration and
benefits packages to all its employees. On-thejjob training
and development opporfunities are provided fo employees fo
enhance their career progression. The Group also encourages
work-life balance by organising charitable, corporate social
responsibility (CSR) and stafffriendly activities for employees,

which are vital to promote staff relationship and communication.

The key customers of the Group include the advertisers and the
advertising agents (collectively, the “Advertisers”). Showcasing
top notch content, the Group's roadshow.hk portal offers
an ideal open platform for User-Generated Content (UGC)
and home-made videos. As such, it is the perfect showcase
for Advertisers wishing to take consumer engagement fo the
next level by interacting with local “netfizens”. The portal also
provides effective promotional and marketing platforms to the
Advertisers. Most of the Advertisers have established long-
term business relationship with the Group which ensures steady

advertising income of the Group.

The largest supplier of the Group is The Kowloon Motor Bus
Company (1933) Llimited ("KMB"), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of Transport International Holdings Limited (“TIH"),
the ultimate holding company of the Company. The Group has
maintained longterm and close business relationship with KMB
over the years. The other key suppliers of the Group include
advertising production or outdoor media companies. The Group
has also established longterm and good relationship with these
suppliers which ensures steady supply so as to provide high

quality products and services to customers.

Share capital

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
24 to the financial statements. There were no movements during

the year.
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Directors

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this

report were:

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak® Chairman
GBS, P
Ms Winnie NG* Deputy Chairman

Mr YUNG Wing Chung*
Dr Carlye Wai-ling TSUI*
BBS, MBE, JP
Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung*
GBS, OBE, JP
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan leung*
BBS, JP
Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung*
SBS, OBE, JP
Mr Alex MO Tik Sang

Deputy Chairman

Managing Director
[Resigned on
7 September 2015)
Mr MAK Chun Keung®
Mr John Anthony MILLER?
SBS, OBE
Mr Allen FUNG Yuk Lun®
Mr LEE Luen Fai [Appointed on

18 June 2015)

# Non-Executive Director

* Independent Non-Executive Director

In accordance with the Company's Bye-law 86(2), Mr LEE Luen
Fai, who was appointed as a Director on 18 June 2015, will
hold office only until the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

and being eligible, has offered himself for re-election.

In accordance with the Company's Bye-law 87 and the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules, Dr Carlye Wailing TSUI, Dr John YEUNG Hin
Chung, Mr MAK Chun Keung and Mr John Anthony MILLER will
retire from the Board of Directors (the “Board”) by rofation at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election.

No Direcfor proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal

statutory obligations.
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Directors’ interests and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures

December 2015 had the

following interests in the shares of the Company, its holding

The Directors who held office at 31

companies, subsidiaries and other associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) at that date as
recorded in the register of directors’ and chief executives’
inferests and short positions required to be kept under section

352 of the SFO:

EERED HEAROREEENERR
KRB
BERBGEZMAEKRPDEIS2HRERAFEN
EXZRBRSTBRAEEANAR SR MARE -
R-E-—RFT-_A=T-HHEENEZK%H
RARE ~ EEB AR - KB AR MEAMAR
B (EER(EF BB RDIE XV ER) 69 B0 &
B AT s

Interests in issued shares REBITROFHERS
Total % of total
number of issued shares
Personal Family Corporate Other shares held 2
interests inferests interests inferests &R BRITRS
{6 AR RikER DEER Hitrg s R & BAt
The Company: Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
ANE BRAERK0. THEER
Ms Winnie NG (Note 1) mEERL ML) 1,000,000 = = 123,743 1,123,743 0.1%
Transport International Holdings Limited (“TIH") (Note 2): Ordinary shares of HK$1.0 each
BEERERERARN(RE) (H72) SREAERBIOTHEER
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak RRiEEEL 2,000 = = = 2,000 0.0%
Ms Winnie NG (Nofe 3| mEERL(HiL3) 41,416 = = 21,000,609 21,042,025 5.2%
Mr LEE Luen Fai (Note 4) TRERE(WE4) - 30,000 - - 30,000 0.0%
Notes: B et

1. Ms Winnie NG has inferest in 123,743 shares of the Company as a
beneficiary of certain private trusts which beneficially held the shares.

2. TIH is the ultimate holding company of the Company.

3. Ms Winnie NG has interest in 21,000,609 shares of TIH as a beneficiary of
certain private trusts which beneficially held the shares.

4.  Mr LEE Luen Fai has interest in 30,000 shares of TIH which represented the
interests held by his spouse.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors or any of their
spouses or children under eighteen years of age has inferests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or other associated corporations, as recorded in the register
required fo be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified fo the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by

Directors of Listed Issuers.
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EEERE

Confirmation of independence B RS

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-  ANARIERE EMARRNE 3. 13 GNRTE - BER
Executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence ﬁi#%ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ'}ﬁrﬁlﬁﬁﬁw CITRRE
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the listing Rules and considers all the MBI IFHITERHABIIE -

Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent.

Substantial shareholders’ and other persons’ TERRREMALTRRSG HEARO K
interests and short positions in shares, EREENEZERAR

underlying shares and debentures

Z-AF+-A=1t—H BARAREEK
=SITBA BN A £ AR B 3 H (AT AR B
Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company (IE%E<< &5 MEIRIRDI)E XV ED) B9 AR 19 J A8
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part B0 P FEH R IE(E %_‘&H B I&BIDEXV “B% 2
XV of the SFO) which were nofified to the Company and the RIDHEMEARARNB RERARBHALRR
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the —RIF(E %&Hﬂfﬂbﬂﬂ»% 336HIFENE uaﬂ%m
SFO and required to be enfered into the register maintained HEIIORBMT :

by the Company pursuant fo section 336 of the SFO were as

At 31 December 2015, the interests or short positions of

the persons (not being Directors and chief executives of the

l“ﬂm%'i

follows:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
EREAEEY0. I THNEER
% of total
Total number issued shares
Registered Corporate of shares held 2
shareholders interests iEsEo) ERITRA
Name =g BERRR NE R R 15 48 2 BAL
Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited REMERRERAF
(*SHKP’) {Note 2] (TFBEE ) Mz 2) = 741,080,210 741,080,210 74.30%

TIH (Nofe 1) En il rz ) = 728,127,410 728,127,410 73.01%

KMB Resources Limited KMB Resources Limited 728,127,410 - 728,127,410 73.01%

Notes: WEE -

1. KMB Resources Llimited owned 728,127,410 shares of the Company. 1. KMB Resources Llimited# % 728,127,410 RANREIRRL ©
KMB Resources Limited was a wholly-owned subsidiary of TIH, which was KMB Resources limited R# AR 2B B A F - BRIR(E
accordingly deemed to be interested in the same number of shares of the 5 REEEA) - FBEEBRKMB Resources Limited AT
Company held by KMB Resources Limited under the SFO. HREENARBRDTHESER o

2. As SHKP was inferested in more than onethird of the issued share capital 2. HRFBRMEREHRBBB=22 —BETRAMNES -
of TIH, it was deemed to be interested in 728,127,410 shares of the HHCES RBERODEXNVBME - EHERARBE BRI BER
Company held through TIH for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO. In addition, BH 728,127 410 AR ARMD P AR EES o thoh - HGE
SHKP was deemed to be interested in a total of 12,952,800 shares of the HFREEEBEXVImME MEEMEREARESE T2
Company held by certain of its wholly-owned subsidiaries for the purpose of EMBARFANLE 12,952,800 RA R ARG H %A #
Part XV of the SFO. 3 o

Apart from the foregoing, no other inferests or short positions B& it &SN - KRR W EEME H AL ARE
required fo be recorded in the register kept under section 336 (EFNMHEHEM)E 36 HFENBCMAER
of the SFO have been notified to the Company. FAE ©
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Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
date of this Annual Report, the Company has maintained the

prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

Indemnity of directors

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the
Directors is currently in force and was in force throughout this

year.

Directors’ interests in transactions, arrangements or
contracts

No fransaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Company, or any of ifs holding companies, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director had a
material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year.

Major customers and suppliers

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
atfributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively

during the financial year is as follows:

LABRERENZTERE

BREARARAFARERENERERESH
Mo RAFRAY  ARBEHEFETRAMR

ENRRFHRE -

ESNEE

ARARESREBENELFTNREGRX(ERR
BRCRAHERI)E AR RIELER » YRAE
ERA—BEEX -

EERXS RESEGHNER

RERINFAEAEHE ABEFEEMHAEAR
A EEMZERAR  MEBARKERME AR
FUMEENETRREARGENR S - sk

BEH o

IREFRHER

RAMBFEER  AEETERXFP RHEEENG
MHERBEEMDRIWMT

Percentage of the Group's total

HEAEERAYED L
Sales Purchases
HE BE
The largest customer RAZF 5%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREPAF 19%
The largest supplier R FERS 33%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AREEBEE 57%

During the year, KMB, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
TIH, is the largest supplier of the Group. Three Directors who
held office at 31 December 2015 (2014: two) had interest in
the issued shares of TIH.
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Purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s
listed securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed

securities.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s

Bye-laws and the Law in Bermuda.

Directors and senior management profiles

Profiles of the Directors and senior management of the Company

are sef out on pages 28 to 34 of this Annual Report.

Five year financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 134 fo
135 of this Annual Report.

Retirement schemes

The Group operafes a mandatory provident fund scheme under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
and participates in employee pension schemes organised by
the local governments of the People’s Republic of China ("PRC")
under the regulations of the PRC. All these refirement schemes
are defined contribution plans and their particulars are sef out in

note 27/ to the financial statements.

Auditors

KPMG retfire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming

Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak

Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 March 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of

RoadShow Holdings Limited

R BER AR A RARRANBE LA ET R S

nIna

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
RoadShow Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
RoadShow Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(fogether the “Group”] set out on pages 69 to 133, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2015, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies

and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial stafements that give a frue and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section Q0 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any

other person for the contents of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of

RoadShow Holdings Limited
FERABERARIBDRROB LB AR S

Auditor’s responsibility (continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2015 and of the Group's financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

15 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

M AGE 32
meEaR
For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-Z-AF+t-A=1t—-HLFE (REBEHE)

2014
Note $'000
Bt = Tt
Revenue KA 2 &3 411,946 459,462
Other revenue H U A 4(a) 23,793 20,857
Other net loss HibEsiE 58 4(b) (5,818) (5,101)
Tofal operating revenue KL AR 429,921 475,218
Operating expenses ReE#ER
Royalty, licence and management fees EHE  FHERERE (224,382) (187,546)
Cost of production RUERL AR (78,165) (90,568)
Staff expenditure B TR (77,806) (86,263)
Depreciation and amortisation e R (16,014) (14,292)
Cost of inventories FERA (12,292) (7,018)
Repairs and maintenance HERIRE (6,143) (6,656)
Impairment loss on accounts receivable FEUBR ZUR B JE5 18 (13,137) (364)
Impairment loss on intangible assets E A ERERE (2,895) —
Other operating expenses Hisa & H (40,224) (34,424)
Total operating expenses RSB FARER (471,058) (427,131)
(Loss)/profit from operations K (EE) BF (41,137) 48,087
Gain on disposal of other financial assets HEEMSmEEKR 5 - 36,603
(Loss)/profit before taxation BBiAT(E5E), BRI 6 (41,137) 84,690
Income tax Frf5#t 7la) (4,892) (8,008
(Loss)/profit for the year REE(BE) BA (46,029) 76,682
Attributable to: EfhmT :
Equity shareholders of the Company AR AR (47,913) 70,587
Non-controlling interests FEER R = 1,884 6,095
(Loss)/profit for the year REE(ER) BF (46,029) 76,682
(Loss)/earnings per share (in Hong Kong cents) BR(EE) BRI GEW) 11
Arising from the Group's operations EEAAEEREEK (4.80) 3.85
Arising from gain on disposal of other financial ELfAHEEMERMEE
assets 2= — 3.23
Basic HAR (4.80) 7.08
Diluted s N/ATREH N/AE A

F75HEF 133AMMEBANYMBRRA — B
o REERNARRBRRBEHFEHNHE

of the Company attributable to the year are set out in note 10. 10

The notes on pages 75 to 133 form part of these financial

statements. Defails of dividends payable to equity shareholders

20156% BABZBRARAT (9



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

meBmkHMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-Z-AF+-A=1t-BLFE (RBEHE)

2014
$'000
T
(Loss)/profit for the year KEE(BE) BT (46,029) 76,682
Other comprehensive income for the year AEEHMEEWE
(after tax and reclassification adjustments): (RBREHFSE
AERE) !
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently HigrsHofsiaan
to profit or loss: BIER ¢
Available-for-sale debt securities: A EEBES
Changes in fair value recognised in the fair FRERNRAAE
value reserve during the year, net of nil tax ERFENRAE
EEH KT
AR (29) 253
Exchange differences on translation of the REBBRINE
financial statements of operations outside BT AR BV IE S =
Hong Kong, net of nil tax ] MR EHIAER (920) (354)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEELHEKSAE (46,978) 76,581
Attributable to: BT :
Equity shareholders of the Company RARIMRER (48,862) 70,486
Non-controlling interests JEERR S 1,884 6,095
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEXHRBERE (46,978) 76,581

The notes on pages 75 to 133 form part of these financial E75BEZEZF 133 B KM 1B AN 5 W&k &) — &P

stafements. 5 o
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
E MR R

At 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
REZZB-—AF+ZA=+—H (REBHFE)

2014
$'000
T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE MR E 12 32,125 39,255
Intangible assefs BIVEE 13 189 2,441
Non-current prepayments and deposits FERBTAN RIA R IR 14 14,502 7,444
Deferred tax assets FEEFIEEE 23(b) 4,775 4,311
51,591 53,451
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 17 6,716 1,720
Amount due from ultimate holding company PR AR AR AR R BIRIR 18(al) 5,004 5,004
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries GBS NN RS 18(b) 3,119 10,609
Accounts receivable FEULER X 19 148,643 146,410
Other receivables and deposits Hth fE WER R iR & 19,377 50,660
Other financial assets HEthemERE 16 — 7,837
Current tax recoverable FEU AN EAFR IR 23(a) 3,458 14,098
Pledged bank deposits BRI TFER 20 79,691 61,400
Bank deposits and cash RITERRRE 21 369,755 438,816
635,763 736,554
Current liabilities REEE
Accounts payable FEBRER 22 5,071 2,913
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries BRI RN B A RFIE 18(b) 13,239 6,302
Other payables and accruals H & BR R % FE ST B A 119,412 102,373
Current tax payable FES AN BR AR 18 23(a) 3,842 1,650
141,564 113,238
Net current assets REEEFE 494,199 623,316
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERRBEE 545,790 676,767
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEIEEE 23(b) 217 125
NET ASSETS EEFE 545,573 676,642
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERGES
Share capital f& 7 24(b) 99,737 99,737
Reserves HEES 438,152 566,305
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders of AABRREGEZETE
the Company 537,889 666,042
Non-controlling interests FEERES 7,684 10,600
TOTAL EQUITY RSB 545,573 676,642

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on  REFER _ZE—RNF=H T H AR AW A&
15 March 2016. oo

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak John Anthony MILLER

BRIEEE L HEE
Chairman Director
FE EZE

The notes on pages 75 to 133 form part of these financial H75EZE% 133 AHMEERNM B HRRN — 3P

m 5

=

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REEm®HR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-Z-AF+-A=+-BLFE (RE%FHEH)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARIRRAEL
(Ac-
cumulated
losses)/
retained
Fair value profits Non-
Share  General Confibued ~ Other  reserve  Exchonge (3t confrolling ~~ Total
Nole  copital  reserve  surplus  resenve  AREE  resee  BE)/  Tol inferests equily
fifs ke kit REES HtRE R MERE REEA Ay FERER EREE
$000  $000  $000  $000  $000  $000  $000  $000  $000  $000
i T T T T T T T i T
Bolance ot 1 January 2014 RZZ-ME-A-ANER 99,737 602 531,569 [605) (224) 14620 29048 674747 9705 684,452
Changes in equity for 2014: Z-MENERED:
Profit for the year REERF - - - - - - 70587 70587 6,095 76,682
Other comprehensive income At 2ENE = = = = 253 (354 = (101 - (101]
Total comprehensive income 2ENEER = = = = 253 (354) 70,587 70,486 6,095 76,981
Dividend approved in respect BELEREHENRS
of the previous year 10(b - - - - - - 79.191) (79,191) - 79,191
Dividend paid fo non-conirolling B FHERERNRE
inferess - - - - - - - - (5,200 (5,200)
Balance at 31 December 2014 RZZ-BE+TZA=T-HR
and 1 Jonuary 2015 “3-RE-F-BHER 99,737 602 531,569 (605 29 14206 20444 666,042 10,600 676,642
Changes in equiy for 2015 R-LENERRD:
(Loss)/profitfor the year AEE(ER)/BH - - - - - - (47913 (47913 1,884 (46,029)
Other comprehensive income T e - - - - (29 (920) - (949) - 949)
Tolal comprehensive income 2EYREE - - - - (29) (920)  (47.913) (48,862) 1,884  (46,978)
Dividend approved in respect of BELEREHENRS
fhe previous year 10(b - - - - - - 7991 (79.91) - (79,291)
Dividend paid fo non-controlling EfFHEBEE RS
inferests - - - - - - - - (4800 (4,800)
Bolance ot 31 December 2015 RZB-RFTZA=1-AK
i 99,737 602 531,569 (605) - 13346 (106760) 537,889 7,484 545573

£75BEZFI133ENMEBAM BRI — &

{/’\ ®

The notes on pages 75 to 133 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

n _\éiﬁﬁiﬁéﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-Z-AF+t-A=1t—-HLFE (REBEHE)

2014
Note $'000
Bt T
Operating activities BEED
(Loss)/profit before taxation BEi R (E518) & F (41,137) 84,690
Adjustments for: HE
Depreciation and amortisation e R 16,014 14,292
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  HEWZE « KFE k&E
Wz (4,000) =
Impairment loss on accounts receivable JEM PR FOR B 1R 13,137 364
Write-down of inventories FEMOR 296 127
Impairment loss on intangible assets BV EERERR 2,895 —
Gain on disposal of other financial assets HEEMemEERE — (36,603)
Interest income B WA (4,998) (9,880)
Foreign exchange loss bE H B 1R 11,666 4,060
Operating (loss)/profit before changes in working EEESRBAINKE
capital (F518) &7 (6,127) 57,050
Increase in inventories FEILm (5,292) (872)
Decrease in amounts due from fellow subsidiaries FEUR [R) 2T B A B FRIA
Ve 7,490 21,031
Increase in accounts receivable JE U2 BR FRIE 0 (15,370) (1,4571)
Increase in other receivables and deposits A e AR SR R 3 & 38 N (5,217) (2,028)
Increase in accounts payable JEA BRI AN 2,158 1,321
Increase in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FEA [R) Z T B8 A Bk IR
&0 6,937 414
Increase in other payables and accruals H e AR e JE A &
& hn 17,034 11,677
Cash generated from operations REREFHNRE 1,613 87,142
Tax paid EASHIA
— Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded/(paid) — REB(BF)EE
MEH 8,176 (16,338)
— The People’s Republic of China ("PRC”) — EfNFEARLME
income fax paid (TRBEDEH (602) (890)
Net cash generated from operating activities REREETHNREFHE 9,187 69,914
201568  BABIERERAA 73




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

MERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-Z-AF+t-A=1t-HILFE (RBEEHE)

2014
Note $'000
i T
Investing activities REFD
Payment for purchase of property, BAYE - BE M&RE
plant and equipment (B (14,320) (4,078)
Payment for intangible assefs BABFEEMNK (1,418) (2,930)
Proceeds from sale of property, HEME - BERREN
plant and equipment PRS /0E 4,000 =
Repayment of loan from investee BWIRE R R ERER - 25,611
Repayment of other financial assets Hith & @& E&E K 40,668 70,020
Interest received [REEIES) 7,767 9,980
(Increase)/decrease in bank deposits with original [REEAR BB =1E A 7
maturities over three months RITER (L M),~
Ve (63,612) 20,317
Increase in pledged bank deposits B IRITF RGN (18,291) =
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing (AR REBRETEH
activities B FE (45,206) 118,920
Financing activities METH
Dividend paid BERRE (79,291) (79,191)
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders B FIEZERR RS (4,800) (5,200)
Net cash used in financing activities ARBMETHNRSFEHE (84,091) (84,391)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRRLE/YORLD),
cash equivalents 3 hniFEE (120,110) 104,443
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—B—BNEER
ReZEEY 262,146 159,253
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXSEHNTE (3,465) (1,550)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+=ZA=+—HHWERE
RASEEY 21 138,571 262,146

The notes on pages 75 to 133 form part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA TSR AL

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRZEERI - SIRBWHE)

1.

Significant accounting policies

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
["HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Llisting of Securities on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“the Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out

below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and
the Company. Note 1(c|) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial

statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2015 comprise the Company and its

subsidiaries (together referred to as the "Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that cerfain investments (see note 1(e)) are stated at their

fair value.

1. TESFEK

(a)

(b)

BEHIEH

A BHRARCBREBEE GRS R
FrAEERKEBMERSERD(BIEM
BEANEMNELSMBRELER) (&
AEFEADRZRE)  BEAIREFR
AR EB(RAGRINKERERE
AMBRENTTEBABRAISMBERA
A ERCEZ EMAR AT EHRA L) A
BEREERY - AEERANER ST
RMBHN T -

BRGNS RME T REERT
(BEMBRELEL)  ZFHMTREE
AEARAEERARNREMEtHEE
IRE R A IR R IR o BIEE 1(c) FAIA
MBmERARROE R L BESHERA
MRERERAEERBNZFH]ELE
FIERIMEEN G RRESNER

MBEBRREREE
BE_T-AF+-_A=1T—HLLFEMN
MEMBHRRBEARALENE R A
(e[ A&EE]) -

REIBRRARANGEEERE LK
A& - EETRE(RKGE e]) HIRER
REEIIE -

2015%% BABERERAR 75



Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS SRR M

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBERI - 9B WHE)

1.

6

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(c)

(continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformif\/
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assefs, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other facfors that are believed fo be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these

estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions fo accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision

affects both current and future periods.

Judgements and estimaftes made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the

financial statements are discussed in note 30.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments
fo HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group. Of these, the following
developments are relevant to the Group's financial

statements:

e Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

e Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 201 1-2013 Cycle

RoadShow Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2015
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1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of the

amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle and
2011-2013 Cycle

These two cycles of annual improvements contain
amendments fto nine standards with consequential
amendments to other standards. Among them, HKAS
24, Related party disclosures has been amended to
expand the definition of a “related party” to include
a management entity that provides key management
personnel services to the reporting entity, and fo require
the disclosure of the amounts incurred for obtaining the
key management personnel services provided by the
management entity. These amendments do not have
an impact on the Group's related party disclosures as
the Group does not obtain key management personnel

services from management entities.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group contfrols an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the obiht\/ to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the

Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated info the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
confrol commences until the date that contfrol ceases.
Intra-group balances, fransactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent

that there is no evidence of impairment.

1. TEEHBERE)

(c)

(d)

BRBREE (#)
AEEYEEREMRAGBEDARE
MEFHERRRE - RAEEIEEY
BHRELMNZEFTHMAT

(BEMBHEER)2010-2012/8 F R
2011-2013 BA# F B X £
ZMERENNFERERRNBERNNE
Al A REMEANBEER - HF - (F
BEETER)DFE245 - BEALKFCHE
HER RUARBIBEALINERERE
BREREHIEEEAEBRETREERNE
BEE ITHATANBEARESEERERE
HOTEEBABREMELNSE - AR
AEETECEEERESTIEETEARR
% BRFETHASENEEALREL
BERTE -

B D B R ERER
MEBARI R AEEZEGNER - HAK
ER2EEREEMATIESTEEHM
WEOR R NER - RBRENTEEHZE
BOENRZEELOR  AAKEHES
RERNZGIE - FEARERSHARE
N EeZR(HAKREREMALR
BH))EERS -

B8 A Rl B m R A 12 R B 46 AE BF AR
EUBHREAN BEERGREKLEEHR
Ik REARBENGER  XHMEBAESR
g REEARXRIFENRSMESNER
BEHRBEN  BRREGRSMBERRET
MemsiE - SEARAENRZMESL
AR ERIZERERKEHRATT
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i Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS SRR M

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBERI - 9B WHE)

1. EEEFBERMAE)
(d) MEARRFEZRERE)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

78

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not atiributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial |iobi|if\/4
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling inferests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling inferests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separafely
from equity affributable fo the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-confrolling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the fotal profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of confrolling and non-confrolling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profif or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 1(el)
or, when appropriate, the cost on inifial recognition of

an investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less

impairment losses (see note 1(j)).

RoadShow Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2015
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1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Other investments in debt securities and equity

interest
The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in debt securities and equity interest, other than

investments in subsidiaries, are as follows:

Investments in debt securities and equity inferest are
initially stated at fair value, which is their transaction
price unless it is determined that the fair value af initial
recognition differs from the transaction price and that
fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability or based on a
valuation technique that uses only data from observable
markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs,
except where indicated otherwise below. These
investments are subsequently accounted for as follows,

depending on their classification:

Investments in debt securities and equity interest held for
frading are classified as current assets. Any aftributable
fransaction cosfs are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss does not include any
dividend and inferest earned on these investments as
these are recognised in accordance with the policies set

out in notes 1(pl(v] and 1(pl(iv).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the
Company have the positive ability and intention to hold
fo maturity are classified as held-fo-maturity securities.
Held-to-maturity securities are stated in the statement
of financial position at amortised cost less impairment

losses (see note 1(j)).

1. FESFEE@E)
(e) HtEBRERRERE

REE KRR B E KB R B AN ETS E
FRBRERENBERIT

BEHEFMBERENSTRAAEE - B
EQXHERIE  FRIFCETHNERN
RABEEXSERLNER - BoAE
EREREEXRELARTS LNHRE
HRBEFRABENEEENGETE
BE - KABREBEBEXZHA - EATH
FIERRIN « ZFHREHRBREE D BRI
THEARR

>

RIEEEMNEREFIRERESE/R
DEE - EAHBEIZNAIRELERE
BafER AEEeESERSHREN
ATERAAEE B E ST R
BERONBDER - ARET ERMN RS
HEBFRLTNBRELELRERNNE
ARSRMNE - BRKRE R BIRMEHE
p)v) % 1(p)liv) FEL A B SRFERR ©

AEER/HARRERHELNREER
BEIBNEHEBES IO BRARKHA
ERHES - FEEIPBHIREHAR
BORE B 18 (R KT 1(j) REF IR R 5
BE o

0154% BRBEEREEAR 79
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1.

80

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Other investments in debt securities and equity

()

interest (continued)

Investments in debt securities and equity infterest which
do not fall into any of the above categories are
classified as available-forsale investment. At the end
of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the fair value reserve. As an exception fo this,
investments in equity interest that do not have a quoted
price in an active market for an idenfical instrument and
whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably measured
are recognised in the statement of financial position
at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(j)). Dividend
income from equity interest and interest income from
debt securities calculated using the effective interest
method are recognised in profit or loss in accordance
with the policies set out in notes 1(p)lv] and 1(p)
liv), respectively. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from changes in the amortised cost of debt

securities are also recognised in profit or loss.

When the investments are derecognised or impaired
[see note 1(j)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised
in equity is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments
are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group

commits fo purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see

note 1(j)).

Gains or losses arising from the refirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or

disposal.
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1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

() Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items

of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated

residual value, if any, using the straightline method over

their estimated useful lives as follows:

Audio and visual equipment

5 — 7 years

Billboards Over the remaining

lease term
Furniture and fixtures 7 years
Hardware and software 5 years

Leasehold improvements

Over the remaining

lease term

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if

any, are reviewed annually.

(g) Programming library

Cost of programmes produced in-house is recognised as

an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

(h) Intangible assets and amortisation

(i)

(ii)

Expenditure on development actfivities is capitalised
if the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient
resources and the infention to complete the
development. Capitalised development costs are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment

losses (see note 1(j)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straightline
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. Website
and mobile apps development costs capitalised are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of five
years from the date they are available for use. Both
the period and method of amortisation are reviewed

annually.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i)

(i)

Accounts receivable and other receivables

Accounts receivable and other receivables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note
1(j)), except where the receivables are interestfree loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial.
In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less

allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note

1(j)).

Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investments in debt securities and
equity interest and receivables
Investments in debt securities and equity interest
and current and non-current receivables that are
stated at cost or amortised cost or are classified
as availablefor-sale securities are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about one

or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in inferest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument

below its cost.
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1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(j) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of investments in debt securities and
equity interest and receivables (continued)
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is

defermined and recognised as follows:

— For unquoted equity interest carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
asset and the estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset where the effect
of discounting is material. Impairment loss for

equity inferest carried at cost is not reversed.

— For trade and other receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these
assefs), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to

the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the assets’ carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no

impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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1.

84

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(j) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of investments in debt securities and

equity interest and receivables (continued)

— For available-for-sale debt securities, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised
directly in the fair value reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative
loss that is recognised in profit or loss is the
difference between the acquisition cost (net of
any principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss on

that assef previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses in respect of availableforsale
debt securities are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be objectively related
fo an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised. Reversals of impairment losses
in such circumstances are recognised in profit

or loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assefs directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors
and bills receivable included within accounts
receivable, whose recovery is considered doubitful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment
losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group is satisfied
that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irecoverable is written off against trade debtors
and bills receivable directly and any amounts held
in the allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged fo the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly

are recognised in profit or loss.
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1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(j) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are

reviewed at the end of each reporting period

to identify indications that property, plant and

equipment, intangible assefs and investments in

subsidiaries in the Company's statement of financial

position may be impaired or an impairment loss

previously recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating

unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of
the assefs in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable)

or value in use (if determinable).
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1. TEEHBERE)

() BERMEGE)
(i) B & ZEwE (&)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(j) Impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

— Reversals of impairment losses — HEEE R
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been fief 4% DA 8 7€ AJ e [0 B R B £ 5t &
a favourable change in the estimates used to HEHIRBENEE  AREBER
determine the recoverable amount. gRm -

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited fo
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited fo profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are

recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Llisting Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an inferim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34, Inferim financial reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal

criteria as it would at the end of the financial year

BB 5 18 B 93¢ (o] BB 12 PR A el £ 4F
W EERBEBRMEEHNEE
AR ME o BB B 18 Y B 3 A5 10 i
REOHFREARBERER

(iii) P RGRI 5 3 & R g 1E
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A ERRBEERERKE ())&
(i) °

(see notes 1{j)(i) and {ii)).

1A o H EA ] 5 122 A 7R 1) B ) 4 R 1B X
FETE R AR B B 1R T & 10 L 1% HA ] 5
@ - BN BRE R (E AT 14 2 0 B
RABNYRFEERRET  BIE
ARRERE BB eR)  FH
BEBRDAERED -

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of unquoted equity interest carried at cost
are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the
case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have
been recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which the

interim period relates.

(k) Inventories k) #E
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net GE TR A KA 215 FEME R ARIE
realisable value. HHIER ©

RATIIRFE TR BRAEE - L BIER
BREERAREM KT EEEREMAEM
B REBRBMRAE RHI KA

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out costing
method and comprises all costs of purchase and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present

location and condition.
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1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k)

(1)

Inventories (continued)

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated cosfs necessary to make

the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period
in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories fo net realisable value
and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of invenfories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the

reversal occurs.

Accounts payable and other payables

Accounts payable and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be

immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(m) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, high|y
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been

within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assefs and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.
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1. EEEHREME)
(n) FRGHL(E)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(n) Income tax (continued)

88

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using fax rafes enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of

previous years.

Deferred fax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and foxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assefs also arise from unused

tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the assef can be ufilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable enfity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible tfemporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred fax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same faxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in

which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(n) Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assefs and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating fo investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in

the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
sefflement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax

assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporfing period and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be ufilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient

taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offsef. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group or the
Company has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assefs against current tax liabilities and the

following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
GCroup or the Company intends either to setfle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the

liability simultaneously; or

1. EEEHREME)
(n) FRGHL(E)
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(n) Income tax (continued)

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same

taxation authority on either:
— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assefs are expected to be
settled or recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on

a net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(o) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
fiming or amount when the Group or the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to seftle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to seffle the

obligation.

Where it is nof probable that an oufflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability

of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p)

(q)

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
Provided it is

probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

consideration received or receivable.

Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss
as follows:

(i) Income from multi-media sales, bus interior and
exterior advertising, and advertising on fransit
vehicle shelters, online portal, mobile apps and
outdoor signages is recognised when the related
advertisements are felecast or commercials appear
before the public. Revenue is stated net of agency

commission and rebate.

(i) Fee income from media sales management
and administrative services, production of
advertisements, and advertising agency services is

recognised when the related services are rendered.

[iii) Revenue from sale of merchandise is recognised
when the merchandise is delivered at the customers’
premises which is taken to be the point in time
when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
of the merchandise have been transferred to the

customers. Revenue is stated net of trade discounts.

liv) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.

(v) Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholders' right to receive

payment is established.

Leased assets and operating leases

An arrangement, comprising a fransaction or a series
of fransactions, is or confains a lease if the Group
defermines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of

whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(q) Leased assets and operating leases (continued)

(s)

leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified

as operating leases.

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an dlternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased assefs.
lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as

an infegral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
confributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or setilement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Translation of foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company and subsidiaries
which operate in Hong Kong is Hong Kong dollar
while that for subsidiaries which operate in the PRC is
Renminbi. The presentation currency of the Company is
Hong Kong dollar.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
franslated af the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
fransaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are franslated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in

profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
fransaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are franslated using the foreign exchange rates

ruling atf the dates the fair value was measured.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s) Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are
franslated into Hong Kong dollar at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the fransactions. Statement of financial position
items are franslated into Hong Kong dollar at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences recognised
in equity which relate to that operation is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Related parties
[a) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related fo the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group's parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entfity and the Group are members of the
same Group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a Group of which the other entity
is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv)] One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third

entity.
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1.

4

Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

(u)

Related parties (continued)
[b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies: (continued)

[v) The entity is a postemployment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or

an entity related to the Group.

[vi] The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the enfity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the enfity (or of a
parent of the enfity).

[viii)The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel

services fo the Group or the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group's most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business

and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nafure of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a

majority of these criteria.
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2. Segment reporting

The Group manages its business by geographical areas.
In @ manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported infernally to the Group’s most senior execufive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has identified the
following two reportable segments.

Hong Kong: Provision of media sales, design and
management services and production

of advertisements

Provision of media sales services and

Mainland China:

production of advertisements
There are no sales between the reportable segments.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’'s most
senior executive management monitors the results attributable

to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation and amortisation

of assets aftributable to those segments.

Segment assets and liabilities include all current and non-
current assefs and liabilities, respectively, which are directly

managed by the segments.
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2. Segment reporting (confinued) 2. ZEREE ()
Information regarding the Group's reportable segments for Bz _ T hAFRh-_ZT-OF+_A=1+—
the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 is set out BIEFE  AEBZHDMOHERHIIMNT o
below.
(a) Reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets (o) 2B MU A BRABE EER
and liabilities: 8
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
0 REIARRE Bt

Revenue from external REINBEPH)

customers WA 411,946 459,462 - — 411,946 459,462
Other revenue and other L ONSEL

net loss [agisbe 22,795 10,975 174 13 22,969 10,988
Reportable segment revenue SR IBWA 434,741 470,437 174 13 434,915 470,450
Reportable segment ERHHBER)/

(loss)/profit 27 (13,405) 58,629 (1) 35,493 (13,406) 94,122
Depreciation and amortisation REEHEREH

for the year (14,038) (12,368) - (4)  (14,038) (12,372)
Gain on disposal of other & H fth & A& B

financial assets Wz - — — 36,603 - 36,603
Impairment loss on accounts [EH R OB E &5 1R

receivable (13,137) (364) - = (13,137) (364)
Impairment loss on infangible EREERERSE

assets (2,895) — - — (2,895) —
Reportable segment assets ERIHEE 519,978 606,473 160,659 166,652 680,637 773,125
Additions fo non-current FERFERBDH

segment assets during BENRE

the year 15,738 7,008 - = 15,738 /7,008
Reportable segment liabilities EHIMAE 141,332 113,021 449 342 141,781 113,363
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2. Segment reporting (confinued) 2. ZEREE ()

(b) The Group’s reportable segment liabilities are equal (b) ZEENEH s BEBHEESNGEABEL
to consolidated total liabilities. Reconciliations of Ho2RIMEA - BAIEEREEY
reportable segment revenue, profit or loss and assets fRANT -

are as FO”OWSZ

2014
$'000
T
Revenue ON
Reportable segment revenue E 000N 434,915 470,450
Unallocated other revenue and other net loss KRB E YA I B A 518 F 58 (4,994) 4,768
Consolidated total operating revenue SR AL PN 429,921 475,218
2014
$'000
T
Profit or loss BRIREE
Reportable segment (loss)/profit E®RHE(E5IE),BF (13,406) Q4,122
Unallocated other revenue and other net loss ROBEE M A KR E M EEFE (4,994) 4,768
Unallocated head office and corporate A BLARH = R R b ST H
expenses (22,737) (14,200)
Consolidated (loss)/profit before taxation HRAEBRTAI(EBER), B (41,137) 84,690
2014
$'000
T
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets 2WAHEE 680,637 773,125
Availablefor-sale debt securities A EEEES — 7,837
Unallocated head office and corporate assefs ROMBHEFRREFEEE 6,717 9,043
Consolidated total assets RE BEMETE 687,354 790,005
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Revenue 3.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of media
sales and design services and production of advertisements
for Multi-media On-board (“MMOB” or "BUS-TV"), transit
vehicle exteriors and interiors, online porfal, mobile apps,
shelters and outdoor signages advertising businesses.
The Group is also engaged in the provision of integrafed

marketing services covering these advertising platforms.

Revenue represents income from media sales, design and
management services and production of advertisements, net

of commission and rebate.

Other revenue and other net loss 4.

(a) Other revenue

A
AEBTENZARDZERE((RBDSHEE]
HELTER])  BEEREZINERERA
B Wb FHREAEN  REZRPINE
SRREHABHENRARE  URESH
ERRT - ARETRRHEBRELEES YA
HYAR & T 5 1 B R TS

WAERHBRRERERENE KO ERBH
€ RAREERS - ARESEENKE -

H AR HMEEFEHE
(a) Efl A

2014
$'000
Tt

Interest income from listed KB EmaHHEEFESL
available-forsale debt securities F B WA 218 1,511
Other interest income HAapF B WA 4,780 8,369

Interest income from financial assets REWIEEBRESZZANEE
not at fair value through profit or loss FIRRH £ B E E R F B A 4,998 9,880
Sales of merchandise ElEEES 18,643 10,916
Sundry revenue H U A 152 o1
23,793 20,857

(b) Other net loss (b) HttEEFEE
2014
$'000
Tt
Exchange loss V& 5 E518 (9,818) (5,101)
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BE R

plant and equipment Bl 4,000 =
(5,818) (5,101)
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5. Gain on disposal of other financial assets

On 9 January 2014, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group entered into (i) an Equity Transfer Agreement to
sell and transfer the Group's entire equity inferest in an
investee to an independent third party for RMB30,000,000
(equivalent to $37,332,000); and (i) a Creditor's Rights
Transfer Agreement to sell and assign its entire interest in
the loans to an investee for RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to
$25,611,000).

At 31 December 2014, the entire equity inferest in respect
of the Equity Transfer Agreement had been transferred,
and a gain on disposal before tax of $36,603,000 had
been recognised which represented sale consideration less
direct costs of disposal of $729,000. The net gain on
disposal after tax was $32,159,000 which represented
gain on disposal less PRC withholding tax amounting fo

$4,444,000.

. (Loss)/profit before taxation

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

HEAEMEE WS

R-ZZE-—NFE—-ANB AEE-K2E
MEBARGV(|BREEERE AARK
30,000,000 7T (#8 % 7 37,332,000 7T ) )
—BUF=NTHERBEAREN —HKIKR
BRRMEZEBE: k(i) BESEGZE - N
AE# 20,000,000 7T (#8% 125,611,000
TT)HEMEZER —HEIRE QRN ERN

P EpAE o

R-_ZT—NE+_A=+—08 SBREE:E
HEAEENEBRED TESE  YERERRK
BBl H & U 25 36,603,000 - BNEERE
MEZEHERA720,0007T ° % HER
@ FEA32,159,0007T © BN & W8
B FEHFR 4,444,000 7T °

BREBLAT (B518), B A
FREAT(ER), /BFE M -

Auditor’s remuneration 1% Z R A

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement schemes

P&

Depreciation and amortisation

Gain on disposal of other financial assets

Operating lease charges REMEXH
— lond and buildings — T REF
— audio and visual equipment — ¥ER

&
TR TR ARG B4

& B £ BE B e

XTA

2014
$'000
T
2,900 2,882
o
1,993 1,904
16,014 14,292
- 36,603
5,963 5,508
256 1,824
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7. Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss represents:

7. IIRGEEERNFTES

(o) IIRGEBRBROBIES :

2014
$'000
T
Current tax RHABIE
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for REZEBMEH
the current year Bl 4,842 3,399
Over-provision in respect of prior years BEFEBEEE (41) (232)
4,801 3,167
Provision for PRC income tax PR FT S R B 406 5,346
Under-provision in respect of prior years BEFERETR 57 40
5,264 8,553
Deferred tax B IE
Reversal and origination of temporary B EEENED
differences K FER (372) (545)
Income tax expense FRISHi3Z 4,892 8,008

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year is
calculated at 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) of the estimated
assessable profits for the year. Taxation for subsidiaries

in the PRC is charged af the appropriate current rates of

taxation ruling in the PRC.

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
(loss)/profit at applicable tax rates:

B)/BRNHER:

AEENEBNERBBDRRATE
P EEB AR 16.5% (=B — W% :
16.5%) 8 « Ko B i B A 78 B E
BUIRER T B AT M AR R -

(b) RERABRRFAENREAMAIEE TS

2014
$'000
T
(Loss)/profit before taxation MR (E18),&F (41,137) 84,690
Notional tax on profit before taxation, TR T A B AL Z B TR TR
calculated af the rates applicable to profits in AERE BRI R EN
the tax jurisdictions HEVIE (6,645) 12,689
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses NATHIRB 2 B E 27 8 1,653 940
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BARTBRANTIEZZ (455) (847)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERRBERNTIATE 8,043 6,667
Reversal of deferred tax assets recognised B E B RRET IR A & 1,719 =
Use of tax losses carried from previous years EABBEFEEENTBEER - (11,554)
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BEFERETR(BHERE) 16 (192)
Others Hth 561 305
Actual tax expense ERBIERX 4,892 8,008
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8. Directors’ emoluments 8. EEM&

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) RIEEBCAHEBI)E 383(1) 16 (A A (3
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of BESNRERRIDE2HNRTE  EF
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of MeEBENT

Directors) Regulation is as follows:

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement
Directors’ in kind  Discrefionary scheme
fees [Note 3] bonuses  contributions
& 2R
BONEHN
g=0d (H1iz3) MERAL  BAGEHER
$'000 ‘000 $'000 $'000
T Tr Tr Tr
Executive Director YTES
Mr Alex MO Tik Sang (Nofe 1) FRELEME]) 75 1,981 - 18 2,074
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak REEREL 154 - - - 154
Ms Winnie NG hETLT 231 - - - 231
Mr YUNG Wing Chung BKBEE 264 - - - 264
Mr MAK Chun Keung BB EH 110 - - - 110
Mr John Anthony MILLER HEBRE 132 - - - 132
Mr Allen FUNG Yuk Lun BEBEE 132 - - - 132
Mr LEE Luen Fai (Note 2) TRBERAE(HF2) 59 - - - 59

Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFHTES

Dr Carlye Wailing TSUI fhRREL 268 - - - 268
Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung FREBL 279 - - - 279
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan leung ~ RER#HE 304 - - - 304
Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung BREPEL 110 - - - 110
2,118 1,981 - 18 4117
Notes: M&E
1. Mr Alex MO Tik Sang resigned as a Director with effect from 7 1. EAEEEB-"T-AFNALHEREES -
September 2015.
2. Mr LEE luen Fai was appointed as a Director with effect from 18 June 2. FEBERAEB_T-AFAATN\HEEZERES -
2015.
3. The benefits in kind are medical and personal accident insurance 3. EVRINEAKERTERZENBREREABIIR
entitled by the Executive Director of the Group. B e
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8. Directors’ emoluments (continued) 8. EEME(®)
2014
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Direcors' ~and benefits  Discrefionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
He - RER
EETikD EWEH WS RIKGHEIER w5t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Executive Director YTES

Mr Alex MO Tik Sang e il 110 1,968 1,867 17 3,962

Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak REEEL 154 — - - 154
Ms Winnie NG ikl 231 = = = 231
Mr YUNG Wing Chung BRKBRE 253 = = = 253
Mr MAK Chun Keung EiRREE 110 = = = 110
Mr John Anthony MILLER HEREL 110 = = = 110
Mr Edmond HO Tat Man ENEE 57 = = = 57
Mr Allen FUNG Yuk Lun BEBLAE 53 = = = 53

Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFHTES

Dr Carlye Wailing TSUI RRREL 257 = = = 257

Dr Eric U Ka Cheung FREEL 279 = = = 279

Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan leung ~ RERHE 257 = = = 257

Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung BRETEL 110 = = = 110

1,981 1,968 1,867 17 5,833

9. Individuals with highest emoluments 9. ZEMEAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one hEsmMe ALtHaEE—R(ZZ—MN4F
[2014: one) is a Director whose emoluments are disclosed —R)EZ ZEEHMeN W HE - A&
in note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of ME(ZE—WF : WE) &M A LM
the other four (2014: four) individuals are as follows: DRBHINMAT

2014

$'000

T

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e SRR REMBEF 6,297 6,110

Retirement scheme contributions RONGH IR 72 ov4

6,369 6,177
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year ended 31 December 2014 have not been
recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting

period.

=t+—RIEFENHREK
AERBAE -

9. Individuals with highest emoluments (continued) 9. BEME AL (®)
The emoluments of the four (2014: four) individuals with ZNE(ZE—NF: OE )&= e ALH
the highest emoluments are within the following bands: MewT :
Number of individuals
AE
ma 2014
$1,000,001 — $1,500,000 1,000,001 7t — 1,500,000 7t 1 1
$1,500,001 — $2,000,000 1,500,001 7t — 2,000,000 7t 3 3
4 4
10.Dividends 10.RE
(a) Dividend payable to equity shareholders of the (o) Z"EEEFEAQATRROKE :
Company attributable to the year:
2014
$'000
TIT
Final dividend proposed after the end of the RBEHRBREZED K
reporting period of nil cent per share RNEAR BB AR
(2014: 3.85 cenfs per share) (Z=—m4&F : 38 3.851l) — 38,399
Special dividend proposed after the end of the ~ R &EEARIEEZE DK
reporting period of nil cent per share RIS & AR E AL
(2014: 4.10 cents per share) —ZT—OF : FE4.101L) — 40,892
— 79,291
The final dividend and special dividend for the RFEwk BE—=—mE+— A

S N Rl B B
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10. RE (&)

(b) ERFRMERKENLELFEESELT
BRERE :

10.Dividends (continued)

(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous year, approved
and paid during the year:

11.

104

2014
$'000
TIT
Final dividend in respect of the previous ERFE A RIKEH
financial year, approved and paid during R ERERERE
the year, of 3.85 cents per share FAR3.85I(=F—M4F :
(2014: 7.94 cents per share) S 7.9441) 38,399 79,191
Special dividend in respect of the previous ERF R KR EH
financial year, approved and paid during F—MBEERERIRE
the year, of 4.10 cenfs per share BR410MI(ZZ=—MF :
(2014: Nil cent per share) FRZEW) 40,892 -
79,291 79,191

(Loss)/earnings per share

(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share

1.8K(&8) &
(o) SREX(HR)/BF

(b)

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share
is based on the loss atfributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company of $47,913,000 (2014:
profit of $70,587,000) and the weighted average of
997,365,332 ordinary shares (2014: 997,365,332

ordinary shares) in issue during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the
calculation of basic earnings per share arising from
gain on disposal of other financial assets and the
Group's other operations is based on profits arising
from the respective operations of $32,159,000 and
$38,428,000 respectively and 997,365,332 shares

in issue.

Diluted earnings per share

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares
outstanding during the years ended 31 December 2015
and 2014.
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(b)

SREA(ER),/ BATREALRE
R R 15 1R 47,913,000 7T (= 2
—m4 : &M 70,587,0007L) RFAL
#17997,365 332 EBBR(ZF — 1
% 997,365,332 1 ¥ B IR ) £ AL T
BYGHE -

BEZZT—NF+-_A=+—HILFE -
EfEHEEMEREENERAEHE
Hi R EXBNERERRN D HIRE
ELXBHBEREERBNARN 32,159,000
7T} 38,428,000 7t A & 997,365,332
REBTRMDFE -

SREEER
RBEE_ZT—AFR-_F—NF+=A
T BLEFEVEABEREYENE
BTEERK -



12.Property, plant and equipment 12.93% - BERRE

Audio and
visual Hardware Fumiture leasehold
equipment and soffware and fixtures improvements Billboards Tofal
Fank BRRaf FR%E HENERE BER &3t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i i i T T T
Cost: B
At 1 Jonuary 2014 R=Z-mE-A-A 136,171 9410 3219 4622 4126 157,548
Exchange adjustmens e = 9) (15) = = (24)
Additions HE 1,236 1,557 197 296 836 4122
At 31 December 2014 RZF-m%
+ZA=1-A 137,407 10,958 3,401 4918 4,962 161,646
Accumulated depreciation and ZATERAERS
impairment losses:
At 1 January 2014 RZT-NE-F-A 101,156 3,755 1,963 822 1,314 108,610
Exchange adjusiments ERRE - 7) (13] - - (22)
Charge for the year ERfE 8,256 1,614 313 1742 1,878 13,803
At 31 December 2014 RZE-RE
+-A=1-A 100,412 5,362 1,861 2,564 3,192 122,391
Net book value: BEFE:
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-QE
tZA=t-H 27,995 5,59 1,540 2354 1,770 39,255
Audio and
visual Hardware Fumiture Leasehold
equipment and software and fixtures improvements Billboards
LA BRRES BRREE HENZEE RER
$1000 $000 $1000 $1000 $1000
T T T T T
Cost B
At 1 January 2015 RZT-15-F-A 137,407 10,958 3,401 4918 4,962 161,646
Exchange adjustmens B - (17) (33) - - (50)
Additions RE 3,342 4,051 55 125 538 8,11
Disposal e - - - - 4,962) (4,962)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-1%
+ZA=1-A 140,749 14992 3423 5,043 538 164,745
Accumulated depreciation and RAAERAERSSR
impairment losses:
At 1 Jonuary 2015 RZE-1%-A-H 109,412 5,362 1,861 2,564 3192 122,39
Exchange adjustmens EREE - (15) (33) - - (48)
Charge for the year ERifE 8,615 2,143 32 2,043 2117 15,239
Wiitten back on disposal HERED - - - - 4,962) 4,962)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-1%
+-A=1-A 118,027 7,490 2149 4,607 347 132,620
Net book value: BEFE:
At 31 December 2015 RZT-1E
t-A=1-A 2722 7,502 1,274 436 191 32,125
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13.Intangible assets 13.BFEEE
Website and
mobile apps
MUK
FHEARS
$'000
T
Cost: RN :
At 1 January 2014 R-Z—ME—H—H =
Additions NE 2,930
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 RZE-—OF+_A=+—HEK
—Z—h¥—HA—H 2,930
Additions NE 1,418
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—RAF+_H=+—H 4,348
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses: R BHRRERSE
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE—MFE—H—H =
Charge for the year FREEH 489
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 RZZE-—MOE+-_A=+—HR
—E-RF—HA—H 489
Charge for the year F R 775
Impairment loss AR 2,895
At 31 December 2015 R=ZF—HF+=-A=+—8H 4,159
Net book value R FHE
At 31 December 2015 RZE-—RAFE+-HA=+—H 189
At 31 December 2014 R=F—WNFE+=-A=+—H 2,441

During the year ended 31 December 2015, an impairment RBEE_T-—RF+_A=+T—HILFE"

loss of $2,895,000 was recognised. The main factor
contributing to the impairment was the decrease in revenue
of the Group's Digital and Mobile Business. The Group
assessed that the recoverable amounts of the development
costs of related website and mobile apps are not significant
and as a result full impairment loss has been made on such

infangible assefs.

14.Non-current prepayments and deposits

Non-current prepayments and deposits comprise
prepayments and deposits for purchase of property, plant
and equipment, security for the due payment of licence fees
and office rental. The amounts are neither past due nor

impaired.
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ERRREEE 2,895 0007 - HERREER
IZRAZR/AKEEB LRI TFEaRHRA
B e AEBFERBRERFHRERREZR
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BYEEZBHERRERBSE -

4 FERBEAMRERES
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15 HMBRARE

TREIMBRARNERM - BRZHEBI
FrRs D BRI AT @A o

15.Investments in subsidiaries

The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries.

The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

FrAMN B ARG AHE () FEENTES
MEBLR HXECHARNEREMBRRA

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under note

1(d) and have been consolidated info the Group's financial

| A

stafements. MEstHE -
Attributable equity
Place of Particulars of issued interest (%)
incorporation/ and paid up capital EERE(EAL)
Name of company operation ERTREAR direct indirect Principal activity
ARER EMAY &% RAFE H# B3 TEER
AdSociety Advertising Agency Hong Kong 2 shares - 100 Investment holding
Limited B 2R REER
EIREBESERAR
Bus Focus Limited The British Virgin Islands/ Us$100 = 60 Provision of media sales
Hong Kong 100%7T service for advertising on
RRRLHS/BA fransit vehicle shelfers
REXEEHEETEEN
R HERY
Bus Power Limited Hong Kong 1 share - 100 Provision of media sales
B 1 iRfiztp service for advertising on
fransit vehicle exteriors
and inferiors
REREEFEH IR
MEBES MR HE R
Cyberstop Limited The British Virgin Islands/ US$1 = 100 Holder of the registered
Hong Kong B design and patent in relation
RBRUEE/BE fo cyber bus sfops
HRABZBE LN
BABEREY
KM-Vision Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares - 100 Dormant
B 10,000 BRAR 1A Emek
leader Force limited Hong Kong 1 share - 100 Provision of media sales
B 1 Rk {3 service for advertising
on billboards
REEERESH
FRHERY
LW-Vision Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares - 100 Dormant
BE 10,000 AR 7 RS
MB-Vision Limited Hong Kong 2 shares - 100 Dormant
B 2R Emek
Road Publications Limited Hong Kong 2 shares - 100 Trading of bus souvenirs
BE 2R BEBTR2RHEEEY
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15 HMBRARE(H)

15.Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Attributable equity
Place of Particulars of issued interest (%)
incorporation/ and paid up capital EiEREEI)
Name of company operation ERITREME direct indirect Principal activity
ARER B EEL S RAFE BE B3 TEEK
RoadShow Advertising (Beijing) ~ The PRC US$500,000 - 100  Provision of media advertising agency
Company Limited {limited HE 500,000%7T service and design and production of
liability company) adverfisements
EABES(ER)ERAR REERESRERBR
(AREERA) B G R EEHE
RoadShow Creations Limited Hong Kong 2 shares - 100 Trading of bus souvenirs
BE 2R RECIESRmBEERH
RoadShow Media Holdings The British Virgin lslands/ US$1 - 100 Investment holding
limited Hong Kong [E RERK
KBRS/ BA
RoadShow Media Limited Hong Kong 2 shares - 100 Provision of media sales &
BB 2R A management services for BUSTV
business
REBTEREHN
R HE L EE RS
RoadShow Productions Holdings  The British Virgin Islands/ US$1 - 100 Investment holding
limited Hong Kong B REER
RERLHS/BA
RoadShow Productions Limited Hong Kong 2 shares - 100 Evenfs production and production of
BB 2R tp content for BUS-TV systems
HASUERBHEE T BRAKAR
RoadShow Resources Limited The British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 = Investment holding
Hong Kong 1% REER
RRRLHS/BA
RoadVision Holdings (China) The British Virgin Islands/ US$1 - 100 Investment holding
limited Hong Kong B REER
RERLRS/BA
RoadVision Holdings Limited The British Virgin Islands/ Us$2 - 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong 2% REER
RBRLRS/BA
RoadVision (Beijing] Limited The British Virgin Islands/ US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong 1% REER
RRRLHS/BA
RoadVision [Shanghai) Limited The British Virgin Islands/ US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong 1% RARK
RERZRS/BA
RSG Resources Limited Hong Kong 2 shares - 100 Provision of employment
B 2R A agency services

REBERN R
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15.Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

15 HMBRARE(H)

Attributable equity
Place of Particulars of issued interest (%)
incorporation/ and paid up capital EERE(EAL)
Name of company operation ERITREMRE direct indirect Principal activity
ARER B SRS RAFE BE B3 TEER
SB-Vision Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares = 95 Dormant
BB 10,000 BRAR 1A TEEX
Silver Sea Limited Hong Kong 1 share = 100 Provision of media sales
BE 1 R 17 service for online advertising

REB RSN RBHE RS

TREVNERASEE —HBEENEER
BEm([EERkER]) MK E 2R Bus Focus
limited &R - LT 2T BERBEER
ARIFHHEATA S o

The following table lists out the information relating to Bus
Focus Llimited, the only subsidiary of the Group which has
material non-controlling interest (“NCI”"). The summarised
financial information presented below represents the amounts

before any intercompany elimination.

2014

$'000

Tt

NCI percentage FERERB DL 40% 40%
Current assets MBNEE 28,266 35,145
Current liabilities mEaE 9,055 8,645
Net assets EEFE 19,211 26,500
Carrying amount of NCI e R i s AR T (B 7,684 10,600
Revenue A 56,199 79,488
Profit for the year REEZ EA 4,711 15,238
Total comprehensive income 2HEW BT 4,711 15,238
Profit allocated to NCI DEEEIEERE SR T 1,884 6,095
Dividend paid to NCI B FIEEREEARE 4,800 5,200
Cash flows from operating activities REKEEHNRERE 4,314 14,812
Cash flows from financing activities REREEZBHNRERE (12,000) (13,000)
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16.0Other financial assets 16 HthEMEE

2014
$'000
T
Available-for-sale debt securities, at fair value BAnBEIRNAHEBE
(listed outside Hong Kong) ESES (BBHEILET) - 7,837

At 31 December 2014, the listed debt security was issued R-ZEBE-—NF+-A=+—B  FHEKE

by a corporate entity with credit rating A-. The availablefor- SHREETRA/ANLEEREIT - AIH T

sale debt securities matured in September 2015. EEBEFER_Z—HFNLARE -

17 Inventories 17. 78

All of the inventories are finished goods of merchandise. FEFEEAREME KD -

The amount of inventories recognised as an expense is as BRASXEONFESHEAT

follows:

2014
$'000
F
Carrying amount of inventories sold EHEFERAEE 11,996 6,891
Wirite-down of inventories 5 MOR 296 127
12,292 7,018

18.Amounts due from/(to) group companies 18. FEU/(FEf) RE A RIFIE

[a) The amount due from ultimate holding company is (o) BUHLIZERAGIRIEAERE 28N
unsecured, interestfree and has no fixed terms of £ [E F B o s KIB N B ek IR R
repayment. The amount is neither past due nor impaired. 8-

(b) The amounts due from/(to) fellow subsidiaries are (b) YW (MR RXKEB QR REEEIR
unsecured, inferest-free, repayable on demand and B 2B AREXEEERE  MFh—K
represent normal frade receivables and payables. The BH R R EMNERR o ZF R E XK B
amounts due from fellow subsidiaries are neither past REIM I BN B HERE -

due nor impaired.
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19.Accounts receivable

(a)

(b)

Ageing analysis

Details of the ageing analysis of accounts receivable
that are neither individually nor collectively considered
to be impaired at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

19. EWAR K

(a)

SRR 7 4T
RBEHR - W& RE R LB EREN
USRI R DB T -

2014

$'000

T

Neither past due nor impaired 3 45 360 A SR (E 78,258 65,933

Less than one month past due BEIDA—E A 24,918 35,248

One fo two months past due wmH—Z=mEA 12,860 14,147

Two to three months past due BEARZE =18 A 8,726 12,023
More than three months but less than w1 AR =18 A

one year past due BAR—F 20,746 15,789

More than one year past due BHERE—F 3,135 3,270

148,643 146,410

According to the Group’s credit policy, credit period BEAEENEEREX  —RBRETEPH

granted to customers is generally within 90 days.
Therefore, all the balances which are not past due
as disclosed above are within three months from the

invoice date.

All of the accounts receivable are expected to be

recovered within one year.

Impairment of accounts receivable

Impairment losses in respect of accounts receivable are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group
is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in
which case the impairment loss is written off against

accounts receivable directly.

(b)

EEHMRO0RB - At - A EXHEKE
MARBRERGNEZARR=EARNEZ
/H\}q o

BHPA RURRER —FRkE -

FE W0 AR R 1B

FRURFREBED T ABER - RIE
AEERERLCZSENESEN - Rt
BRT - BEREE R EEURRE -

2015%% BABERERAR
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19 EUWRR ()

(b) FEW AR FRE (4)
FARKRBRBENESOT

19.Accounts receivable (continued)

(b) Impairment of accounts receivable (continued)
The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
during the year is as follows:

2014

$'000

TIT

At 1 January n—A—H 364 =
Impairment loss recognised E R ER EE R 13,137 364
13,501 364

At 31 December 2015, the Group's accounts receivable of
$13,501,000 were individually determined to be impaired
(2014: $364,000). The individually impaired receivables
related to customers with long overdue balances and
management assessed that the receivables are not expected
fo be recovered. Consequently, an impairment loss is
provided for. The Group does not hold any collateral over
such balances.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
fo a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent

history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate

R-E-—AF+-_HA=+—H K&H
JEWBR 3K 13,501,000 L(=ZF — 4 :
364,000 L) EERIEE /AERE - &
Tl RR (B O JE M SR TR T S A B ] 0 B A
BRNEFAMR  BEEEMEENEA
BA R EERM - WEELIRERER
o AEEAERZFTESRT B EAER

0
oA °

3 48 380 B R (B HO FE MR R D B2 % 4 Rl
W EIERCENEPHR -

EEHE KR E A B W RIR TS B T AR

fo a number of independent customers that have a good EEBAR BT ENBYEEAR o
BEEELR EEEBMHEHRZEER
MEEEXRITARHRERRE  RZEH
DR /A 2 EKE - MBARZEFE
BIELRERE - AEEY B ZFEH
FATAERR -

frack record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

20.EEHARTER

BREARRMNBLARRRRHBARLAA
AT E AR BB E =AM E TR
hE ZEWBAREREZERITRIN
ERNBZERFERZRTINETRRE  F
HAZERAMNBARIRE =TT RIHEAN
RITHER - ARBEBAE B ARITERR
RITEIFRITHER 79,691,000 L(=ZF—M
F :61,400,0007T) °

20.Pledged bank deposits

Pursuant to cerfain licence agreements between subsidiaries
of the Company and fellow subsidiaries and between
subsidiaries of the Company and independent third
parties, bank guarantees have been provided fo the
fellow subsidiaries and the third parties in respect of the
subsidiaries’ due performance and payment under the
respective licence agreements. The Company has pledged

bank deposits of $79,691,000 (2014: $61,400,000) to

banks for the bank guarantees issued.
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21.Bank deposits and cash 21 RTERERE

2014
$'000
Fr
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFERE 126,740 190,199
Bank deposits with original maturities [REER R =1EA AR
within three months BITER 11,831 71,947
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose SRBGEHRERERM = &
of the consolidated cash flow statement HeRkBEeEED 138,571 262,146
Bank deposits with original maturities [REEAR BB =188 5
over three months RITER 231,184 176,670
369,755 438,816
22.Accounts payable 22 BB
Details of the ageing analysis of accounts payable at the RBEHAR - BNEXNRROTFBTOT
end of the reporting period are as follows:
2014
$'000
Fr
Due within one month R—1{& A A EI & 5,071 2,913
Credit period granted to the Group by suppliers is generally HERE—REFAEENEEEH AR -
within 90 days. Therefore, all the balances which are due W A P — (@B RNEE R &g 3

within one month above are within three months from the =HHEAE = (E A AT o

invoice date.

All of the accounts payable are expected to be seftled TEHAFT A FE T BE SR A — E NG o

within one year.
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23.Income tax in the consolidated statement of 23. 5 R GEEMBERAKRNTE
financial position

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) IRGEMBERRENEBHRES :

financial position represents:

2014
$'000
T
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year NG [E & BRI G & 4,842 3,399
Provisional Profits Tax paid BENEHNEH (4,813) (16,347)
29 (12,948)
PRC income tax payable JE AT R B P A 85 355 500
384 (12,448)
Reconciliation to consolidated statement of financial BEEH BN IR -
position:
2014
$'000
T
Current tax recoverable recognised in the RS ISR R R A
consolidated statement of financial position JE UK AN B 7 18 (3,458) (14,098)
Current tax payable recognised in the AR E B IS ARR R R A
consolidated statement of financial position FEAS AR HATR I8 3,842 1,650
384 (12,448)
(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised: (b) CHEENELHBEEE (AF) :
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) N AT BRI ERANBRERIESE

recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the movements during the year are as follows:

(BE)WARBNHRRFRNESNT :

Depreciation
allowances

in excess
of related
depreciation Tax losses
B AR E
HNiFEER BEER
$'000 $'000
T T
At 1 January 2014 R-ZZE—WNF—HF—H8 5,560) 9,207 3,641
Credited/(charged) fo profit or loss EBERFA (F%) 860 (315) 545
At 31 December 2014 R_ZE—NE+=-A=+—H (4,7006) 8,892 4,186
At 1 January 2015 R-E—RF—A—H (4,706) 8,892 4,186
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss EEZERA(FIX) 1,288 (916) 372
At 31 December 2015 R—ZE—R&+=-A=+—H (3,418) 7,976 4,558
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23.Income tax in the consolidated statement of
financial position (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised:
(continued)
Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of

financial position:

23 5N G S M BRR RO AER ()

(b)

ERIANELHEEE (AF) © (5

REEFBRNRERNEE

2014
$'000
Tt
Net deferred tax assets RIEFRIBE EFE 4,775 4311
Net deferred tax liabilities R IE B E5 5 (217) (125)
4,558 4,186

Deferred tax assets not recognised: (c) RERHWELEHEERE :

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
1(n), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assefs
of $19,734,000 (2014: $9,972,000] in respect
of cumulative tax losses of $119,602,000 (2014:
$60,434,000), as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entfity. At
31 December 2015 and 2014, the tax losses do not

expire under the current tax legislation.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised:

At 31 December 2015, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of a subsidiary amounted
to $7,693,000 (2014: $6,919,000). Deferred tax
liabilities of $769,000 (2014: $692,000) have not
been recognised in respect of the fax that would be
payable on the distribution of these retained profits
as the Company controls the dividend policy of this
subsidiary and it has been determined that it is probable
that profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable

future.

(d)

BEBERE I AEOAERE ARE
ARG EEEREE IR LRA
AAEEEBORRERTARN &
AN & B EFHRING602000 (=
— P4 : 60,434,000 7T ) B B & 71 B &S
BRERI9,734,000L(= & — M 4 :
9,972,000 L) WERERIBEEE - R=F
—hAERZE—HEFT=ZA=T—H B

BRITBREEN - RBBERLERE
AERNELEDRAE :

R—_F—-—AF+-_A=+—8B BH
— KB RRKRDIREE NG EE
Z R R7,693,000(ZF — W F:
6,919,0007T) » B A2 H % 8
NRAHKREBE - BR/ZMERRER
REFRAAEAEDIREN - Ett - I
B IREZ SRS BN R BB TR
R769,0007T(ZF — M4 : 692,000
T EEERIBREE ©
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24.Capital and reserves 2. REREESE
(a) Movements in components of equity (o) EEZEARBONE S
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REBERE e S 4R E 0 B 9] B B R 45
balances of each component of the Group's RHOHERENGERZEHER - ARAF
consolidated equity is sef out in the consolidated 14 25 48 A BF 19 A AN 5 HR ) SR HA R FAl &Y
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes HEHBHINMT ¢

in the Company’s individual components of equity

between the beginning and the end of the year are set

out below:
The Company PN
Share  Contributed ~ Accumulated
capital surplus losses Total
R BRRR S BEt
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt T FIT F7T
Balance at 1 January 2014 R=Z—ONF—-A—H
K A5 ER 99,737 594,404 (313,921) 380,220
Changes in equity for 2014: —E-MFHESR
25
Profit and total comprehensive REERMEE2E
income for the year Was4a%s — — Q7,746 Q7,746
Dividend approved in respect ERLFEEHEDN
of the previous year i8N = — (79,191) (79,191)
Balance at 31 December 2014 ~ R=Z—F
and 1 January 2015 t=ZA=+—-HR
—E2-HF¥—-HA—H
WA R 99,737 594,404 (295,366) 398,775
Changes in equity for 2015: “E-RFER
25
Profit and total comprehensive REERMEE2E
income for the year W ek 48 %5s — — 33,941 33,941
Dividend approved in respect ERLLFEEHEDN
of the previous year [ies — — (79,291) (79,291)
Balance at 31 December 2015 R=Z—HF
+=ZA=+—H
M5Bk 99,737 594,404 (340,716) 353,425
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24.Capital and reserves (continued)

(b) Share capital

24 BARfREE(E)
(b) BRA

2014
Number of
shares
& & E
'000 $'000
F A Tt
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of $0.1 each HREEO. 1 JTHY
TiER 10,000,000 1,000,000 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BERTREME :
At 31 December Rn+=—A=+—H 997,365 99,737 Q97,365 99,737

The holders of ordinary shares are enfitled to receive

dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled

fo one vote per share at general meetfings of the

Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard

to the Company's residual assets.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Company's Bye-laws and the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

General reserve

General reserve is provided by each of the Group's
PRC subsidiaries at 10% of their net profit after tax,
based on the respective subsidiary’s PRC statutory

financial statements.

The general reserve can be used to sef off any
accumulated losses or converted into paid-up

capital of the respective subsidiary.

(iii) Contributed surplus

Pursuant to a group reorganisation in 2001, the
Company became the holding company of the
Group. The excess of the consolidated net assets
represented by the shares acquired over the
nominal value of the shares issued by the Company
in exchange under the reorganisation in 2001
was fransferred fo contributed surplus. Under the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, contributed surplus
is available for distribution to shareholders.

EBREFEAGREBRIARERES -
U BEERARBBRRAE LBHA —BRK
NER—F - MALARBEAARNRGHE
EMEHZAREES -

RESHHER AR

(i) BR17aE
BHaRBERNERIARAGINARMHA
Bk BRE-NN—F(RaE)R
fR o

(c)

(ii) —REE
AEBEHEMBARIHEREEH
MBARWPEEEMBRERTED
BRIGIZAEFN A 10% A — MR FEE -

— MR AT AR S ] RET B 1Ak
ERRERNBARNDHREK -

(iii) B & & &
RE-_ZFZ-—FNKREEH  ARF
RAAREENER AR - KEEEF
EREAKEMBERONDBELARAR-F
Z-EREEMAEERBRMET
MRMEE  ZFERCEAELHA
7o REARE-NN-F(R2FER)
RE BHESKTKETRR -
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24.Capital and reserves (continued)

118

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Other reserve

In 2007, the Group entered info an agreement with
a fellow subsidiary to acquire the remaining 8%
equity inferests in a subsidiary, KM-Vision Limited
at a consideration of $1,211,000, resulting in a
premium of $605,000. The additional investment
was accounted for as an equity fransaction and the

premium was recognised directly in shareholders’

equity.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net
change in the fair value of availableforsale debt
securities held at the end of the reporting period
and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy sef out in note 1(e).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of operations outside Hong
Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with

the accounting policy set out in note 1(s).

(vii) Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2015
reserves available for distribution to shareholders
of the Company was $253,688,000 (2014
$299,038,000). After the end of the reporting
period, the Directors did not propose a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015
(2014: a final dividend of 3.85 cents per share,
totalling $38,399,000 and a special dividend of
4.10 cents per share, totalling $40,892,000) (note
10(a)). The final dividend and special dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2014 have not been

, the aggregate amount of

recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting

period.
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24 RER REE(E)

(c) EESHHERBAE(E)
(iv) Efbf#E

$EIEA_7?4:$§51 H?Mﬂ%

ARG —EHE 1,000 7%
E"Jﬁ@”ﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁ@W%@ﬂKM-\/ision
limited FISA B0 8% K IR #E - FTEE £
B 56050007 ° tLEEINE B TH A

BHER SR GEEEPKREEZR
RRER o

(v] AAEERFE
AR EERGEEERNRSHAFEN
AL EBEEESF A A BEMNETE
)R 0 WIREBMH 1 (e) TEI 2 5T
KRR °

(vi) S EE 17 1E
INERFEBRIERE R AINER T

BRELEWAAENLZRE - ZERHE
IRMTEE 1 (s) B S St R BRI o

(vii] @& & 89 7 7 R
B"_i AFF+ZR=+—8B" 7
DRTEARARRNFEHEBLE
£253,688,0007L(= f*@ﬁ
299,038,0007T) ° EA#ﬁﬁiHH;Kfé
ESVTITERREBE ﬂi

TZA=+— ElJJ:iEE’\JEE,ﬁﬁH =
(ZT-—mOF: RPKREEK3I.85
il % % /”38,399,0007T * LA
RFERIKRBFRAION BER
40,892,000 7T )(Fﬁ #F10(a)) ° B
WEHR BE —mE+=-A
=t- EiJJ:ﬁEE’WE,HHHQE\&%EUHx
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24.Capital and reserves (continued)

(d) Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital
are fo safeguard the Group's ability to confinue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurately with
the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a

reasonable cost.

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group did
not have any bank borrowings. The Group had bank
deposits and cash balance as at 31 December 2015
amounting to $369,755,000 (2014: $438,816,000).

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder refurns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of

changes in economic conditions.

25.Financial risk management and fair values

The Group is exposed to credit, liquidity, interest rate and
currency risks arising from the normal course of its business.
These risks are limited by the Group's financial management

policies and practices described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to
accounts receivable and other receivables and listed
debt securities. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks are

monitored on an ongoing basis.

Investments made are normo||y on|y in |iquid securities
quoted on a recognised sfock exchange, except where
entered info for long term strategic purposes. Given the
high credit standing of the counterparties, management
does not expect any investment counterparty fo fail
fo meet its obligations, except for those on which

impairment losses have been made.

24 RER REE(E)

(d) EXxER
AEEEREANEZARIREAEE
REMBERECENRSD  EtMEBER
K FREENERMRBEE  ARE
BARERANRE  #EARRREHRDOR
RREMBESRESE RS -

RZE-—RAFR-ZFT-—NF+-A="1—
B AEBVEEMBRITEE - AEBR
—E-RAF+-A=T—HNETERK
W& &8 A369,755000m(=F— 1Y
& :438,816,0007T) °

AEEEE R EHHEEARBRARS
RERE  NERSBRRERIER NATaeH
BEH)E = 8 BKF B R AT RO B AR 5 2R
NES RRE MG FE - I EELHE
REMNE(CHEARBELHAE -

5. U BEREERRAAEE

AEENEEXKEREGELRFEE RPE
2 MERERRR ZERRITHRAE
B 81 7% B IR R R ABOER B

(o) EERK
AEEMEERREERABKERRE
KRR R ETESES  EEER
—EHEEHR  UeREERGELEER

B o

—RME  ARBERZBARERZ
TRBEFRE (RPN B AMA] L
BRI - EREEEFRK S BEE
YN EHREMREHFHEREBTHE
% HEZSEEHRERBERIE
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25.Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

120

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)]

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a cerfain amount.
Customers of media sales business are generally
granted credit terms of 90 days while customers of
merchandising business either pay on delivery or are
generally granted credit terms of 30 to 90 days.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from

customers.

Bank deposits and cash af bank are normally placed
with licensed banks that have credit ratings equal to or
better than the Group. Given their high credit ratings,
management does not expect any licensed bank fo fail

fo meet ifs obligations.

The Group has not provided any guarantee which

would expose the Group or the Company to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from accounts receivable

are sef out in note 19.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the Company’s Board of
Directors when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy is
to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions fo meet ifs liquidity requirements in the short

and longer ferm.

The Company also monitors closely the cash flows of its
subsidiaries. Generally, the Company's subsidiaries are
required to obtain the Company's approval for activities
such as investment of surplus cash, raising of loans and

settlement of suppliers’ invoices beyond cerfain limits.
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(o) EERR (&)

(b)

AEBUMERLBERETEREENTS
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BHEXBNEPOOREEY  MAm
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BEERARRARE N ERT - ER
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AEBYEBRHEMATESAKEERER
A H R 5 B R R A JER o

AEBREEREEFNEERRNARSE
BRI 19 (B — TR E -

RBEEER
ARBETERKEERATEE IR
LEHE BRESEFURERANES
TR MEERCHEEBERNE TEE
KY - QBB ARAESTSHHE - K
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25.Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

(c)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s non-
derivative financial liabilities which are required fo be

repaid within one year or on demand amounted to

$59,468,000 (2014: $55,130,000).

Interest rate risk

It is the Group’s policy to monitor market conditions
closely and devise suitable strategies against interest
rate risk. The Group regularly reviews its strategy
on inferest rate risk management in the light of the

prevailing market condition.

(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile of
the Group's interest bearing assets and liabilities af

the end of the reporting period.

5. M BEBERERAABEE)

(b) REBVE & @M (H)

REEF - AEBAR—FRRNER
BHER M IEAT £ S A M5 59,468,000
JL(ZZ—M4F : 55,130,0007T) °

A=k
AEENBRREDNEETHRR © AR
REEHAZRRASERE - AEER
BERNMEINR - RN XER
B RS -

(i) FIEHR
TRFNAEERREHRNFAEE
ENBENMEER -

2015 2014
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate p.a. rate p.a.
BERFERE BRFH =
% % $'000
Aokt ERasd Tt
Fixed rate assets: ElEFIEZE -
Other financial assets HEmemEE
— availablefor-sale debt securities — Al it E BT
s - - 41 7,837
Bank deposits (including pledged RITEFR(BEE
deposits) TR 1.4 322,706 2.3 310,017
322,706 317,854
Variable rate assets: FEFELE -
Cash at bank RITER 0.1 78,045 0.2 100,014
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T

5. M BEABRERERAAEBEGE)

25.Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(c) FIRmE(E)
(ii) BBEZH

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)
(i) Sensitivity analysis

122

At 31 December 2015, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have decreased/increased the Group's loss
after tax and accumulated losses by approximately
$760,000 (2014: increased/decreased the
Group's profit affer tax and retained profits by
approximately $865,000). At 31 December 2014
other components of consolidated equity would
have decreased/increased by approximately
$53,000 in response to the general increase/

decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group's profit/loss
after tax (and retained profits/accumulated losses)
and other components of consolidated equity that
would arise assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied fo re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to fair value interest rafe risk
at the end of the reporting period. In respect of
the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising
from floating rate non-derivative instruments held
by the Group at the end of the reporfing period,
the impact on the Group's profit/loss after tax (and
refained profits/accumulated losses) and other
components of consolidated equity is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest income of such a
change in inferest rates. The analysis is performed

on the same basis as for 2014.
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R-Z—RAFE+-A=+—8 - st
FIREREFTHIOOMEEZ -
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BHBREREANRRBRFEEM
WA 4865,0007T) c R-T—ME
+t-—A=+—A8  FAXREELFA/T
BB eER A ESOEMMARIN
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EGURE D T BRBRRMERNEE
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25.Financial risk management and fair values

5. M BEABRERERAAEBEGE)

denominated in Renminbi which is not the functional
currency of either the lender or the borrower.
The net inter-company receivables amounted to
RMB122,454,000 as at 31 December 2015 (2014
RMB122,531,000).

The following table indicates how an appreciation in

(continued)
(d) Currency risk (d) E¥mEE
The following table details the Group’s exposure af TRFANAEEEHER AR R AL E A
the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising ShNE %%Ehﬁﬂfﬁﬁ’]é?&%%ﬁﬁﬁéi&
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a HIR TR AR & % AL
currency other than the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate.
Exposure to foreign currencies S B
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (B EE
2014
usb RMB
%7 AR
$'000 $'000
T T
Other financial assets HthompEE — — 7,837 =
Other receivables and deposits Hi KRR R RE - - = 32,888
Pledged bank deposits BRI TFER 67,991 — 58,700 1,500
Bank deposits and cash RITERRIRE 55,629 22,867 Q1,656 65,385
123,620 22,867 158,193 99,773
In addition, the Group is exposed to currency risk o REEEHUAREGEER A
arising from inter-company receivables and payables EE A NG S

ARENERTEENEERR - R=2F
—AF+ZA=+—H " ArIHAEERK
HFHEAARKI122,454,000 (= F
—MHE : AR®122,531,0007T) °

TRETRBERARARBLEEEY

Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar at the end of the REBEREELE R EMEXAKBH
reporting period would have affected the Group's results Hhe s o
for the year and other components of equity.
2015 2014
Decrease in Increase in
Increase in loss for the Effect on Increase in profit for the Effect on
foreign year and other foreign year and other
exchange accumulated components exchange refained components
rate losses of equity rafe profits of equity
Yt W
FEEFBRR  BEAKHH RERRFR  ERAREY
RitEERD b2 B = 5E BAMNE M E’]?ﬁ%
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Renminbi ARE 3% 5,027 - 3% 7,587 =
2015%®  HamEREaRAR 123
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5. M BEABRERERAAEBEGE)

25.Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) E¥RER(E)

124

A weakening in Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar by
the same percentage at the end of the reporting period
would have had an equal but opposite effect on the

Group's results for the year.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in
foreign exchange rate had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to currency risk at the end of the
reporting period, including infer-company payables and
receivables within the Group which are denominated
in a currency other than the functional currencies of the
lender or the borrower, and that all other variables,
in particular interest rates, remain constant. In this
respect, it is assumed that the linked rate between the
Hong Kong dollar and the United Stafes dollar would
be materially unaffected by any changes in movement
in value of the United States dollar against other
currencies. Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the effects on
each of the Group entfities’ results affer tax and equity
measured in their respective functional currencies,
franslated info Hong Kong dollar at the exchange rate
ruling at the end of the reporting period for presentation

purposes. The analysis has been performed on the same

basis as for 2014.

Renminbi is not a FU||\/ convertible currency. All foreign
exchange fransactions involving Renminbi must take
place either through the People’s Bank of China or other

institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign currencies.
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25 M BEBRERRAREBEE(

P}

)

25.Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

le) AAMENR

(e) Fair value measurement

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

valve

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement categorised
recurring fair value measurement of the Group's
financial instruments at the end of the reporting
period into the three-level fair value hierarchy.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in

the valuation technique as follows:

e level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities at the measurement date.

e level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are

inputs for which market data are not available.

e level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using

significant unobservable inputs.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
only financial instruments of the Group carried at
fair value were matured (2014: $7,837,000) (see
note 16). Recurring fair value measurements of these
instruments are categorised info level 1 of the fair

value hierarchy described above.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, there
were no fransfers between level 1 and level 2,
or transfers into or out of level 3 (2014: Nil). The
Group's policy is to recognise fransfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the

reporting period in which they occur.

(i) BAREBEGENEBEERER

(BAMBHREEDE13% - /271
EBEFE/KAEENTHTARR
EHMRNEELEAABEAESEAR
“RARBESRREE - BLAEE
AEDBENERTIR2ENTHEN
AR BABBNABRERERE

hEE -

e FILMKE: ERAFZIREA
FR(ANAERHRAEERE
BEREBRMSHNREHERE)

AENLDAER-

e F2UME:RAE2RBAK
E(BIRREZRE | RN A BN
ABEB)RY FNEREARTAE
ENBABBTENAAEE-
TABENBARBERLETIS
BB ARIE -

s FIM/MHE: KAERTABE
HBARIBENAABE -

REBEZE-_T—AF+HA=+—H
LFEE AEEEAABAEIED
H-—epITABIH(ZE—NEF:
7,837,000 ) (R zF16) ZF
TANKEMAARBEFENSER
ERARBESREENE L -

RBEE-_Z-RE+-A=1+—H
HFEE  FIREF 2R HELEE
B TESAEINXBEEIREH
(ZT—0F : &) - RBRAKENK
R PABESRRBCHELENE
BIIR|RERRER
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25.Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i) Fair valve of financial assets and liabilities carried
at other than fair valve
All financial instruments carried at cost or amortised
cost are carried at amounts not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December 2015
and 2014 except that amounts due from/to
ultimate holding company and fellow subsidiaries
are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
repayment ferms. Given these terms it is not

meaningful to disclose their fair values.

(f) Estimation of fair values
Fair values of listed available-forsale debt securities
are based on quoted market prices at the end of the
reporting period without any deduction for transaction

costs.

26 Commitments

(a) Capital commitments
At 31 December 2015, the Group had the following
capital commitments in relation to the purchase of
property, plant and equipment not provided for in the

financial statements:

25 M BEBRERRAREBEE(

P}

)

(e) RAEBHEFTEE)
(i) WHERABEIEYEHEER
BEEHALEE
FTB AR RN EmT
BEEHER_T-—HFR_ZT-—NF
TZA=T—HANAAEEHMEEXR
Z82 - HRK BARKERARR
RZMBARRBERAEER 28K
BETENS ERUFHRI BE
HARBENEETK

(f) DARBEEMGS
FHAHEEEBRESFN AR BEIRE
IR 3R 5 B R BT 3R 10 T 45 R 8 (AL R AR E
AR HHA)ETE °

26. %M

(a) BAALE
R-ZE—RF+-_A=+—A0 XEEL
BERAMBERRELBENEAEEY
¥ BERREOEREENT :

2014
$'000
FT

Contracted for BRI AHE

5,723 =
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26.Commitments (continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments

(c)

At 31 December 2015, the Group's total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of property and equipment
are payable as follows:

26. R HE(8)
(b) REBEEARE

R-ZE—AF+-_A=1t—8 XEER
BEBOELEREONTAZHLEHER
NEORRZEHESEBWT :

2014

$'000

T

Within 1 year —FR 4,629 4,968
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFA 6,211 621
10,840 5,589

The Group leases property and equipment under
operating leases. The leases run for an initial period of
1 to 5 years, with an option fo renew the leases when
all terms are renegotiated. The leases do not include
any contingent renfals.

Other commitments

Under certain exclusive licences to (i) conduct media
sales management services for BUS-TV business
operated by The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933)
Limited ("KMB”) and long Win Bus Company Llimited
["long Win"),

management business on selected bus shelters,

(ii) conduct media sales agency and
(iii)
solicit advertising business in respect of the interior and
exterior panels of buses operated by KMB and long
Win, [iv) solicit advertising business on billboards and
other advertising spaces owned by independent third
parties, the Group has committed to pay licence fees
or royalty fees at o pre-determined percentage of the
net advertising rental received, subject to a guaranteed
minimum amount. Such licences will expire in periods
ranging from 2016 to 2020. The future minimum
guaranteed licence fees and royalty fees are payable
as follows:

(c)

AEERBEKSHEHRAMELRE - H
EMFRE—E2R%F  UAREHEASE
MGERREN HETBEEFMIAR

Hit &4
REASBERE TR NLEEL

(—A==)EARQFA(TAE ] kEEE
TERRAFR(EEENMEENELER
EBRUEERBHEEETERSE (| RFE

BErrE=iRHESHERERERE
Bl ghBEREEMEENELHNE
FERBREFINDEEMETESES -
RivVBIE=AHENESREEM
BEMETESEBNENE  ~5EBE
E&%?ﬁﬁﬁ%%%%%ﬂ@%%ﬁE’J%E%FZEE
DHBNETEXENE HEAX {EW%
BEEAR - ZERTERNT =
FE_Z_ZFHHEIMY - *Xﬁﬂﬂ%
HAEBERBENENT

2014
$'000
T
Within 1 year —FR 191,856 204,776
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFA 113,503 296,687
Over 5 years HBTEF - 1,148
305,359 502,611
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26.

27.

128

Commitments (continued)

(c) Other commitments (continued)
The above licences typically run for an initial period of
24 to 72 months, and certain of the licences contain
an option fo renew the licence when all terms are

renegotiated.

Employee retirement benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent frustees. Under
the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make confributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of $30,000 ($25,000 prior to June 2014).
Contributions to the MPF Scheme vest immediately.

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group
participates in employee pension schemes organised by the
local governments under which the Company’s subsidiaries
are governed. Details of the schemes of the Group are as

follows:

26. R HE(8)

(c) EfEEE)
LS EFRE— R BRI R 24 E 72
BR  mETHFEESEEXFTEN
EER EREEFATENRT °

27 BERIKEF

AEBEREBEFECRHERTERTERMDA
W RBBCER GG )M I F & 8 B R 3L 58 Bl
MArEeFE((RESHE ) - RESF
SIREHMFENRTE BB LEARBEE
2o RipREDE BEXTREREHAR
AEELEENEEERRASEOET - M
FRAEBARANERA30,000T(=F—N
FRAMERA250007T) o @& &4
KA RE -

REBEFBEESR  AKE2EHBREARRAN
BRARAMMTBAERNESRKSFE -
AEBHFTEIFENOT

Administrator Beneficiary Contribution rate (Note)
EEA ZEA B (MEE)
mu 2014
Beijing Social Security Fund Management Centre Employees 20% 20%
ERTHEREESEEH D (=
Note: M e

Under the scheme, the Group and its employees are each required to make a
confribution fo the scheme at 20% and 8% of a pre-defermined amount.
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28.Material related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed

elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group has the 5

. EREALTHNEARS

following related party fransactions during the year:

licence fee and service fees for B+ EREBEFT R
conducting BUSTV business IR &
licence and royalty fees paid for the right MHEETIRE=EEN
to sell advertising space on bus shelters RE RS2 AT YRR T 2
=&

Licence fee for the right to solicit advertising
business at advertfising space on bus inferiors

RE LB REARRES
ETEE RN

BRATBHRREMBDARENR S REH
N REERFRAEATEREALHNRS :

Rt &
Licence fee for the right to solicit advertising RELEFINBES
business at advertising space on bus exteriors EITEE BTN
Frat &
Rental expenses HEEA
Management fee and sales rebate ERE NHE D
Service fee paid for logistic function HEBRE N RGE
Mobile data subscription fees RBEERFE
Key management personnel remuneration TEERAEME

2014

Note $'000
B E Tt
(i) 19,338 19,242
(ii) 18,121 23,997
(iii) 18,700 13,833
(iv) 94,222 67,500
(v) 3,061 4,612
(vi) 22,340 28,916
(vii) 490 490
(viii) 1,279 2,120
(ix) 10,486 12,010

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

licence fee and service fees were paid to subsidiaries of Transport
International Holdings Limited (“TIH"), the ultimate holding company
of the Company for conducting BUS-TV advertising business on buses
operated by KMB and fitted with the BUS-TV broadcasting system.
The amount payable by the Group at the year end amounted fo
$10,653,000 (2014: $5,960,000).

licence and royalty fees were paid for selling advertising spaces
on cerfain bus shelters owned by a subsidiary of TIH. The amount
payable by the Group at the year end amounted to $352,000 (2014:
$846,000).

licence fee was paid to a subsidiary of TIH for soliciting advertising
business in respect of the interior panels and other inferior spaces inside
the compartments of buses operated by KMB. The amount receivable
by the Group at the year end amounted to $23,000 (2014: amount
payable of $2,977,000).

licence fee was paid to a subsidiary of TIH for marketing, displaying
and maintaining advertisements at the exterior panels of the bodies
of buses operated by KMB. The amount payable by the Group at the
year end amounted to $1,958,000 (2014: amount receivable of
$8,288,000).

Rental expenses were paid fo a subsidiary of TIH for leasing of
properties amounted to $2,805,000 (2014: $2,788,000) and for
leasing of audio and visual equipment amounted to $256,000 (2014:
$1,824,000). The amount payable by the Group at the year end
amounted to $Nil (2014: $Nil).

B EE -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

i\

R LRBERENNEMEENE L ENBELERE
BEGETELIERESEB N TARRARKERR
AHRARRERAERAR(THBDNWBEARNER -
RER AEBEENHFRIERI0,653000T (=%
—M4 : 5,960,0007T) °

HHRhEFERERHEESBMNBERRMERNETE
THREFTESUIMNNER - NFER - AEE RN
1H/4352,0007C(=Z— M4 : 846,0007T) °

R ERERRNEBREENEINERABESLR
HEAASLEETESEB N TRAEMBE AN
ER - RER AEEREMNFKARK23,000T(=F
—ME : ERFIE2,977,0007T) °

BHERERTSESN RIRERESNNAEHREE
MBLTWEHIIBESMNEAINTHBHNBEARANE
A RNER AEEEMNHFIAR,958 000 (=%
—Mm4E : EUFRIAS,288,0007T) °

AEEAHEENESE2,805000%(=F —MF :
2,788,000 ) REFXERE ST 256,000 L(=F
— P4+ 1,824,0007 ) AL AK B AR XA HE ®
Ao RER AEEBMNOREATE(ZT Mm%
i) -
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28.

29.
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Material related party transactions (continued)

Notes: (continued)

[vi) Management fee amounted to $22,094,000 (2014: $26,985,000)
and sales rebate amounted to $246,000 (2014: $1,931,000) were
paid to JCDecaux Cityscape Llimited ("JCDecaux Cityscape’), a fellow
subsidiary of a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary of the
Company, for the provision of management and agency services in
relation to bus shelters. The amount payable to JCDecaux Cityscape at

the year end amounted to $2,012,000 (2014: $3,981,000).

[vii) The Group paid a service fee to JCDecaux Cityscape for the logistic
function provided fo the Group in relation to the bus shelters under the
media sales business. The amount due to JCDecaux Cityscape at the
year end amounted to $41,000 (2014: $41,000).

(viii) Mobile data subscription fees were paid to a subsidiary of a substantial
shareholder of the ultimate holding company of the Group for mobile
data transmission services. The amount payable by the Group at the

year end amounted to $167,000 (2014: $887,000).

lix) Remuneration for key management personnel, including amounts paid
to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note 8 and certain of the
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 9, is as follows:

. EBEALNEARRS (4)

BieE : ()

vi] AEBERREREAETHREFEERRERENES
HERRA(EERE DX NERESHE 22,094,000
T(ZZ — W4 :26,985000r) R#EEB ML E
246,000L(=ZF—M4 : 1,931,0007T) * %A Fl=
ARENERAFFERBROFRMBERR - RER -
BN FREESRANRKIER2,012,000T(ZF—MEF :
3,981,0007T) °

(vii) AEEGERREAMAEEEREMEE LRE=EEH
EEXBRA THRIBRBEABSRAINREE - RF
R BN PREERANKEAR4],000T(ZF—HF :
41,0007T) °

Vi) RBBERFPERERRBDREEHRE N FAE
BNREKZERARNTIERRNMBRATANER - NF
R AEEENORIER167,000T(ZF—MF :
887,0007T) °

lix) ETREBASHHES(BEMNEISAREINTARAE
ENFEERMEOMBREINTFETRSHFLERBOR
BT

2014

$'000

Tt

Shortterm employee benefits M EERA 10,396 11,926
Post-employment benefits BB 12 1R A 90 84
10,486 12,010

[x)  Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of licence fees and audio and
visual equipment rental expenses payable to subsidiaries of TIH and
management fee payable to JCDecaux Cityscape above constitute
connected fransactions or continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures required by Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules are provided on pages 22 to 26 of the annual
report.

The related party fransactions in respect of service fee paid for logistic
function payable to JCDecaux Cityscape, rental expense for leasing
of properties payable to a subsidiary of TIH and the mobile data
subscription fees payable to a subsidiary of a substantial shareholder
of the ultimate holding company constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However,
they are exempt from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Immediate and ultimate controlling party

At 31 December 2015, the Directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be
KMB Resources Limited and TIH respectively. KMB Resources
Limited is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands while TIH
is incorporated in Bermuda and listed in Hong Kong. TIH

produces financial statements available for public use.
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F20H -

FERBIRGEEN FTRERANREE  HREENE
ENTHEMBARNEEER  URENTREER
RAEZERROMBEATDNARBSRERALENFREA
IRHGBAFERERF(FRELLTRAE 14AE) o
R ZREXFERRET ETRAE IAZTHRER
B o
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30.Accounting estimates and judgements

The key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
Company reviews annually the useful life of an asset.
The depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted
if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assefs are
assessed af the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that they may be impaired. Such indications
include physical damage of a property, plant and
equipment and a decrease in the revenue derived from
an intangible asset or property, plant and equipment.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the infangible assef or property, plant and equipment
is estimated. The recoverable amount of an intangible
asset or property, plant and equipment is based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on reasonable assumptions that
represent management’s best estimate of the range of
economic benefits from the asset over ifs remaining

useful life.

Impairment loss on intangible assets of $2,895,000
(2014: $Nil) was recognised during the year ended
31 December 2015 and the carrying amount of the
intangible assets was $189,000 as at 31 December
2015. Details of the impairment loss of infangible assefs
are set out in note 13.

Impairment of accounts receivable and other
receivables

The Group mainfains impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debts for estimated losses resulting from the
inability of the debtors to make required payments. The
Group bases the estimates of future cash flows on the
ageing of the accounts receivable balance and debtors’
credit-worthiness. A considerable level of judgement
is exercised by management when assessing the
creditworthiness of each individual customer and the
collectability of each accounts receivable balance. Any
increase or decrease in impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debts would affect the Group's results in future
years.

30. &5t b st R A Ef
AT BRI REMBFTHERKR :

(a)

(b)

(c)

e

ME - BERREDRBEMGFAIERF
HNEREAHENE - ARREBFRIE
ENAERFY - MBERABRLEEAE
g ARRHENFERSELAE -

ME - BERREREFLEERE

AEBENEBERSHRTENE  BER
REREVEEBOREDNR - 2FPR
BREOE  BERREBNELGEREREN
BEIMFE - BB MR EAEEN RS
Do EEEEMUESFHETR  AEEK
BT BT EEIVE - BERRENH AR
EEE - BLEEXME - BELRED
Ao EEEERAEEE ZEHE
REEBHZEENKEMFHRER
AR AERR - MR N EAFH
ETHERERA ©

—E—RE+-A=t+—HItE
EHREFEENRERIE?2 895000
T(ZE—MF: &) RZT—HF
T A=t HREFEENEEES
189,000 - B EEMN BEEEFS
FHRAMIEETS ©

P W B K B2 Lt W B KR 1B

AEBHREBAENEERT N KEM
SIBA ARt B R R RRRARERE -
AR ERE YR EGRRER REBTA
MEEENREFTRARRERE - EEE
REHE BRI P 0 E SR N k& RARARK
FEER T UK [ B B 1 L — E AR E RO Il
RERREEBEBN GRS AT ER
SERREFENESA -
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31.Company-Level Statement of Financial Position

31. AT M BMRR K

2014
Note $'000
B 5 T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries MB AR E 62,835 62,835
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS BB A Rl R IE 86,513 75,375
149,348 138,210
Current assets RBEE
Amount due from ultimate holding company FEMER AR PRI A B RIR 5,004 5,004
Amounts due from subsidiaries N NGIE S 371,755 399,395
Other receivables and deposits H IR ER R kiR e 1,420 2,128
Pledged bank deposits BARIIR TR 79,691 61,400
Bank deposits and cash RITEREE 2 116,150 136,922
574,020 604,849
Current liabilities RBAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERSHI B A A5k E 194,104 192,823
Other payables and accruals H BRI T E A 6,596 5,070
200,700 197,893
Net current assets REBEEFE 373,320 406,956
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABERRBEE 522,668 545,166
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries AL NG R 169,243 146,391
NET ASSETS EEFE 353,425 398,775
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARHES 24(a)
Share capital A& A 99,737 09,737
Reserves S 253,688 299,038
TOTAL EQUITY AR 353,425 398,775

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors

on 15 March 2016.

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak
PR

Chairman

FE
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32.Non-adjusting events after the reporting period 2. FABRBEMRER

After the end of the reporting period, the Directors did not EENBREHRBRIEZZRERARE - £
propose a final dividend. Further details are disclosed in —HEF BRI 10(a) KE -
note 10(al).

33.Possible impact of amendments, new standards 33.EHMERBE-_FE-HEF+=A

and interpretations issued but not yet effective =t+t—BLEFEERERNERERT] -
for the year ended 31 December 2015 MEARZREURERNTE

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the BEAMBREATERS  FEedMrg
HKICPA has issued a few amendments and new standards EEMZEREE S —RAF T+ _A=1+—
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December HIEFE W RERNEET RAEL - AR
2015 and which have not been adopted in these financial BHRRTERMNZFETRFEL BN
statements. These include the following which may be TheREANEEEAMNEET RIFTLER -

relevant fo the Group.

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on

or after

i NIN=E: =

ZEBBRN

S HIBEN

Amendments of HKAS 1, Disclosure initiative 1 January 2016

(BAGTERDE | SRER] - [HEFE] —ZET-RFE—H—H

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, Clarification of acceptable methods

of depreciation and amortisation 1 January 2016

CBEAEEEANE 10 R R(EBGEERINE 38RMIBE] « [BETERBHZ LT %] —T—"F—A—H

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018

(BBMIEMEERDE 155 - [ELAIEFIMA S —ZE-N\FE—H—H

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2018

(BEAMBRMELRDEOS  [£H LA/ —T—-N\F—A—H
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of RNEER EFHBHRZEEIEVIXERS
what the impact of these amendments is expected to be in MHEE AR AZEEITEeR Y
the period of initial application, and is not yet in a position REBRNESEEERYBRNELSEATE

to conclude whether the adoption of them will have a EB AR ©
significant impact on the Group's results of operations and

financial position.
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Five Year Financial Summary

hFMBHE

For the years ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t—-HLFE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETIT BETIT BT BT
RESULTS ES
Revenue WA 411,946 459,462 462,002 421,154 371,491
Other revenue and H A K
other net income H bl 558 17,975 15,756 26,212 22,019 25,837
Total revenue WA 458 429,921 475,218 488,214 443,173 397,328
(Loss)/profit from operations &% (E518), /A F| (41,137) 48,087 98,882 96,490 79,193
Gain on disposal of other S E b Bl
financial assets EERE — 36,603 — — —
Reversal of impairment loss/ Bt & F & ER(E
(impairment loss) on other g mE
financial assets CRE 18 ) — — 25,611 — (109,6006)
Loss on disposal of S BB A R 1R
subsidiaries — — — — (468)
(Loss)/profit before taxation  BRFLAT (E518), B F (41,137) 84,690 124,493 96,490 (30,881)
Income tax FT1S %% (4,892) (8,008) (15,871) (16,991) (12,863)
(Loss)/Profif for the year TEE(FE) BRI (46,029) 76,682 108,622 79,499 (43,744)
Attributable to: FEMEAAT ¢
Equity shareholders 2NN
of the Company (47,913) 70,587 104,853 74,817 (48,637)
Non-controlling interests IR = 1,884 6,095 3,769 4,682 4,893
(Loss)/profit for the year RERE(EE) BF (46,029) 76,682 108,622 79,499 (43,744)
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At 31 December

R+=HA=+-—H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BB T BT T BT T BB T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERAE
Property, plant and ME - BB M
equipment S 32,125 39,255 48,938 49,122 64,672
Intangible assets B EE 189 2,441 — - —
Non-current prepayments SER BTN IR
and deposifs Rize 14,502 7,444 12,484 3,741 1,667
Other non-current HIEmE
financial assets ERMEE — — 8,124 81,296 80,872
Deferred tax assets RET I & 2= 4,775 4,311 3,770 2,618 3,060
Net current assets mENE EFE 494,199 623,316 611,265 519,494 491,540
Total assets less B EEER
current liabilities mENEE 545,790 676,767 684,581 656,271 641,811
Deferred tax liabilities BT IE & & (217) (125) (129) (157) (81)
Net Assets BEZRE 545,573 676,642 684,452 656,114 641,730
Capital and reserves RAER REE
Share capital [N 99,737 99,737 99,737 99,737 99,737
Reserves EEe 438,152 566,305 575,010 546,441 530,739
Total equity aftributable RRAFRRR
fo equity shareholders JEh e R
of the Company 537,889 666,042 674,747 646,178 630,476
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR R 7,684 10,600 Q9,705 9,936 11,254
Total Equity R 545,573 676,642 684,452 656,114 641,730
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Registrars IR Rt it &

Hong Kong & #
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Annual General Meeting RRBF X E
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